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Thiz Bise will have 3044 units located above a two-level mall, and

has set the benchimark for its world-class amenities demgnﬂd m fit

the lifestyle of a young and dynamlc rnarkf:t N

)

The tullish demand in the DfﬁCE SECtGF carned on in 2014 wmh, it
The Enterprise Center commanding one of the highsst lease rates

amongst office buildings in the Makat Central Business District,
Despite tne influx of new office space in the market, The Enterprise
Center achieved an average oocupancy of 98% in 2014 and sawits
netincome increase by 171% versus 2013,

The Enterprise Center began a Php400 million plus rehakilitation

program o ensure it remains the office building of choice amongst

the top carparations in the country. These rencvations will cover
thie corridars, lift loibbizs and public areas of bath towers, and are
rargeted for completion in 2007,

The retail sector remained aggressively competitive with the

opening of several new malls that competed with our very

own Shangi-La Plaza, and the |ntroducmﬁ of small community.
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revenues of Php7.6 billion, @ 10.2% increase from PhpS.9 Gillon of

1;allawed" hang‘Pr@per‘cles to declarﬂ i hIghe; d:vﬁ:iend pern Share of _

“term and our vision to be one of the Ieadlng developers and_

Shang Fropertes had an excellent year in 2014, achieving gross -

iciigs year Sharehoiders equur;.r w.ﬂ UP 9 G% fmr'n Phpl] o

Php0.13 fram Ehpil 11 gran increase of 72.7%,

While we enjoved unprecedentad growth in 2014, it is important
that we continue to look for new projects and opportunities which
we are focusing on and consider a gricrity. With the firm support of
our valued shareholders, we remain steadfast in our commitment
to the comgany toensure continued business growth in the long

managers of prime propertiesin the Philippines.”

We thank our Board of Directors, management, and staff for their
dedication and hard work, as well a5 our business partners, Guyers,
tenants and customers for their ::c:-nt.nut:d SUDDO‘I and trust in.
Shang F'roperﬂes -







THE RISE MAKATI

The Carnpany's newest residential offering, The Rise, made a
huge splash during its introductony vear in 2004 with a strang
sales performance that generated Phpd. 58 killicn in revenues
fram the of sale of 1488 units ar nearly half of the 1o1al 3,044
UMES i TS inventany,

In terms of gross floor area, The Rise sold 47000 square melers
during the year, or 44.1% of its tatal Met Sellable Area (NSA) of
|0, aa0 sqm.

Located just north of Ayals Avenue slong Malugay Street in
what is now knawn as the Marth Makati or Mobda, The Rise is
a towering architectural landmark of 63 storeys that offers a
new lifestyle concept inan area that is teeming with gallesies,
delicatessens and bistros, indie music venues and unique
retdil destinations.

The Fise featurss cozy and exceptional amenities such as The
Hangout, a 300 sqm open lounge that is ideal for enterlaining
friends and families for any cocasion or simply for just @ Chat
aver coffes,

P
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There is also The Workshop, which a5 the name suggests, is means
for work, meetings or studyving. It offers an IT bar, & library, reading
and meeting raarms, and ather quiet wark spaces.

Faor relaxation, there is The Mesl to provide a welcome refuge from
the hustle and bustle of ciry life. Whether just getting lost with a
good read, hanging arcund in the garden terraces or curling upin
a hammaock, The Mest is a ranguil zone right within the confines of
wour building,

Other features of The Rise include a 2B-mmeter wropical pool and
childrens pool, & jogaing path set amid the greens, a children's
play space, & barbecue patic, and a fully eguipped and modern
gym suited for training and exercise, The amenities of the Rise have
sornetting o offer for every member of the family.

The Rise residential units it an wop of a twoelevel bouticue mall
that will house more than 50 retail and service qutlets including
cafes and bars, banks and comenience stores among others
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SHANGRI-LAATTHE FORT

The Shangri-La at the Fort s the Company's luxarious hoetel and
resiclential development ar the Bonifacio Global Cily, oflenrg a
rrix of 576 hotel guest roams, 97 hotel residences and 98 exclusive
Horizon Homes within the same ultra-grime property.

Located at the comer of 5th Avenue and 30th Street. it is
destined 1o become one of the country's newest landmarks, The
hotet-residential complex has a total GRA of 137,453 sqm and an
estimated corstruction cost of Php18 billion, making it one of the
st expensive property developments inthe Philipginess,

As of the end of December 2014, the sale of 12 Harizon Homes
urits have bieen completed representing 2% of the wtal 8 units
availabile for sale. Revenues were at Phpl.17 billion while total area
sold reached 3,576 som out of the gwerall Met Sellable Arsa (WEA)
of 33,606 sgm.

One of Shangri-La at the Fart's unigue feature is an extensive sparts
club within the developrnent, The clut will have swimming pools,
an indoor sports hall, boxing, NBA-standard basketball facilities,
and tennis courts that are spread out in twa large floors Other
amenities include the Adventure Zone for children ang a spa thar
will offer membership programs,

FROFPERTIES fula
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ONESHANGRI-LA PLACE

One Shangri-La Place s Shang Properties’ biggest completed
condominium project ta date, with a total development cast of
Phga 1 billion. 1T iopped of in September 2013 and started turming
over units to buyers during the 3rd quarter of 2014,

The Ha-storey twin (ower condaminium sits atap the Shangri-La
Flaza's EastWing at the Ortigas Center in Mandaluyong City and has
atotal et Sellable Area (NS9A) of 110,484 sgm and 1,284 residentizl
units offered.

Gross revenues from One Shangri-La Place as of end-2014 stood
at Phpi 16 billian, with 1,177 units already sold or 91.6% of the
combined units from the Morth and South Towers. The project has
sold 102,218 sqm o 92.5% of the total MSA available,

ArTiss Bendering

SHANGSALCEDO PLACE

The Company's second residential praject in Makat Tity, Shang
Calceda Place is a 67-storey luxury development with a very limited
number of units = only 74% in total - that will define and become
the standard of true and exclusive luxury in Salcedo Village.

Amenities at Shang Salcedo Place include separate swirmming
poals for children and adults, gy and exerdise ooms, a children’s
play area and an cutdeer garden at the podium level,

SHAMG FPROPERITES dula
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THE ENTERPRISE CENTER

The Enterprise Center faced big challenges in 2014 - the
expiration of some of its leases and the entry of new office
spaces in the Makati Central Business district. The Company's
COMMItMent [ retaining its tenants prevailed and more than
0% of the expiring leases were renewed,

AT the same time, other remaining vacant spaces in the
buildding were taken up by new and existing tenants, resulting
in a $A% average occupancy rate and an average rental rate of
Fhpd21 per square meter by the end of the vear

Asoa resull, net income of The Enterprise Center grew 11%
from Ehpo20 millian in 2013 to Phps%d million or an increase
of PRo?d million.  Gross rental revenue also increased Oy
Fhp?0 million 1o Phpsis milion, up 8% from the Phpg3?
rrillicn in the previous year,

Tor retain angd mantain ics existing tenants and to continue to
strengthen The Enterprise Center’s Qosition as the prestigious
business address of the Philipgines’ top corporations, The

4
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Enterprise Center embarked on a 2-year program to upgrade and
rencvate its existing facilities, amenities, and major eguipment. The
rencvation will also create addinonal office spaces for lease and
the upgraces will cover all common areas in the tenanted fioors as
well as the surrounding landscape, driveway and lobbies. The food
court will also undergo a complete makeover,

In 2014, The Enterprise Center also earmed major distinctions during
the 148th Fire Safety Complince Awards given jointly Dy the City
of Makati, the Botary Club of Makat, and the Makati Commercial
Estate Association for its safety and fre prevention prograrms,
winning awards for Building Fire Safety, Fire Brigade, and Corporate
Fire Safery in the commercial buillding cateqory.

SIANG PREOPERTIES i






SHANGRI-LAPLAZA

Shangri-La Plaza is undisputadly the country's most established
upscate shopping and lifestyle destination. Located in Shangri-
La Hlace, an integrated communily Duilt on B4 hectares of
lanngd on the Bustling Drtigas Center cormmercizl and finansizl
distict inMandaluyong City, it oifers its customers 2 complate
and carsfully selected mix of supsrior goods snd senvices in
well-glanned merchandise Zones.

Known for its pioneering innovative retail concepts, Shangsi-
Lz Plazs cpenead its East \Wing in 2013, The new wing, which
saamipszly complemeants the world class lifestyle experience
at the dain'Wing, further boosted the signature Shang maling

expetence, Thus, in 2014, Shangri-La Plaza was recognized -

arew [or it unparalleled retail poweern, having been adjudged
&5 the 2013 Shopping Center of the Year {Large Categany) in
the Dierstanding Filiping Retailes and Shopping Centers of the
aar Awards, a joint efforn of the Philipgine Retailers Association
[Fan) znod the Departoent of Trade and ndustry (OTI0.

SHAMG PROPERTIES
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Currently, the Main Wing is under a major rengration and redevelopment
prograrmwhich is expected to be complated in 2015 Almed at achisving
2 unified Shangri-La Plaza, these cngoing improvernents and upgrading
in and sround tha kain Wing will gave the way for ngw relail conceps
and create additional sources of revenue and growtn,

Shangri-La Plazas rmore than one hundied thousand sorm of etail
space is a delightfil and dynamic emvdronment that evobes with its
lowal customers, Shopoing at the Shang is & trely enjoysble and viarang
exparience &5 the mel itself is a pleasure 1o be in, featuring cutting-
edoe architecture, spacious interiors, and a relaxing ambience, The mall’s
mcre than 500 astablishmeants not only provide viorant and pleasurable
shopping that 5 a feast for the sensas, @t also imbues 1his axperience
with choice events, performances and exhibits shawcasing the country's
culture and art,

2004



Edward Kuok Khoon Loong

is the Chairman of the Company and also Vice Chairman of Kerry
Holdings Limited. He has besn with the Kuak Group since 1578
He has a Masters degree in Economics from the University of
Wales in the United Kingdom.

Alfredo C. Ramos

is the Vice Chairman of the Company. He is the Chalrman
of the Board of Anglo P‘h:lupplne ‘Holdings, - Inc, - Anvil
Fuplishing, Inc., Carmen Copper Corporation, MBS Express,
Inc. and Vulcan Materials Corparation. He is the Chairman
and President of Atlas Consalidatedfining & Development
Carparation, the Philodrill Corparation; Mational Book Stare,
Ing., Wulcan Industrial & Mining Corporation. and United
Paragon Mining Corparation, He s also the President of
Abacus Book & Card Corporation, Crossings Department
Store Corp., Power Books, Inc, and MET Holdings Inc. He
is VWice Chairman of Shangri-La Plaza Corporation, MRT

Development Cur:}cranon Mctro Fail Transn Corﬂoratlon_ . . )
- Danila Reginal. Fojas

and LR Pul::-hcatu::m:. lnl: i

Johnny O. Cobankiat

is the Fresident of Co Ban Kiat Hardware, Inc., Ace Hardware,
Philippines, and Coby's Marketing Corp. He s Vice Chairman
of the Federation of Filipino-Chinese Chamber of Commerce,

Director of R Nikla Ser:unnes Inc and of lhe Ph|I||:.~prne_

Hardware Associati u"l

Antonio O, Cojuangco

iz the Chairman of Ballet Philippines, CAP Life Insurance
Corporation, Cinemslaya Foundation, Mantrade Development
Corporation, Mabasdan-Subic Deue_lomment Corporation,

Radio Veritas, Tangha ta_ng Filipino, sand . Durectones_‘-_'

Philippines -Cor pmal:! i

Golf and Country Club:

Management,

Director of Calatagan Golr Club Incr. am:i Eanl.ur::-ang

Manuel M. Cosico

is a Partner of Romulo, Mabanta, Buenaventura, Sayoc & de los
Angeles Law Firm. He is Chairman of the Construction Industry
Arbitration Commission (CIAC) since 2011 and was a former
Arbitrator of CIAC fram 2001 to 2011, He was previously the
Fresiding Judge of Branch 136 of the Regional Trial Court of

“dakati from 1986 1o 1991 and a Spedial Criminal Court Judge

from 1986 to 1991. He was formerly a Professor of Evidence,
Civil Procedure, Special Proceedings and Trial Techniques at the

Atenen de Manila University.

Cynthia Roxas Del Castillo

is a Partner at Romulo, Mabanta, Buenaventura, Sayoc & de
los Angeles and has been with the firm for over 30 years.
She nolds an LLE from Ateneo, graduated Valediclarian in
1976 and placed 11th in the 1976 Bar Examinations. She
currently serves as Corporate Secretary and Director of
cther various Philippine corporations,

is the Executive Vice President and
of Shangri-La Plaza Corporation. She
of K54 Realty Corporation and The Enterprise Center
Condominium  Corporation. She is the first female
to graduate with honors from the Asian Institute of
She completed her Masters in Business
Management with Distinction in 1978 and participated

General Manager
is also a Director

. in the one-year advanced top management course in
Cpconamics and business development at the University of

Asla and the Pacific in 1953,
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Ho Shut Kan

is the Co-Managing Director of Kerry Properties Limited [KPLL
He is responsible for overseeing the aperations of the project
companies and the projects of KPL in Hong Kong, Macau
and overseas. He is a nan-executive director of Eagle Asset
Wanagement (CP} Limited and manager of Champion Feal
Estate Investrnent Trust, which is listed in Hong Kong.

Koay Kean Choon

is the Senior Project Girector of the company. He worked as M &
£ Manager with Keery Project Management Ltd. Hong Kong and
as Senior Project Manager for Shangri-La Hotel Management
Ltd, from 2000 to 2017,

Wilkie Lee

iz a Project Director of Kerry Properties Ltd. He obtained his
Bachelar's Degree in Civil Engineering from the Universily
af Saskatchewan, Canada and a Masters Degree in Business
tgdrministration from the University of Motre Dame, USA and the
Londen Business Schoal.

Maximo G. Licauca 11T

is the Direcior of the Philodrill Corparation. He is alse President
of Filstar Distributars Corparation (Hallmark Licenses) and Area
vice Prasident of Mational Bock Store, Inc,

Kinsun Andrew Ng

Federico G. Noel, Jr.

is the General Counsel of the Company. He is also the Corporate
Secretary and Legal Counsel for the other Kuok Group companies
in the Philippines including the Shangri- La Plaza Corporation
and the Shangri-La Hotels. He graduated from the Ateneo Law
Schoal in 1991 with a Juris Doctor degree.

Benjamin l. Ramos

is the President of RO Corp., an investrment campany. He was
previausly the President of Powerbaoks, Inc., and also President '
of Tokyo Tokye, Inc,, the largest Japanese fast food chain in the
Fhilippines. He has an MBA fram the Stanford Graduate School
of Business,

Wilfred Shan Chen Woo

is an Executive Director as well as Executive Assistant 1o
the Chairman af the Board. He is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accouniants of British Columbia and the
Canadian lnstitute of Chartered Accountants since 1985 He
graduated in 1982 from the University of British Columbia in
Vancouver, Canada with a Bachelor's Degree in Commerce,
majoiing in Accounting  and ‘ﬂar'agen*ent Information
Systems.

is the Group Financial Contro!ler of the Company He alm_-:-_ 2

serves as Director of the various boards of Shang Prnpernes
zlfiliates and subsidiaries, He is an assaciate member of the
Hong Kong Society of Accountants and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
LL.K. He graduated fram the Hong Kong 5hue Yan University
wilh a degree in Accounting.

L3 s
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Snang Froperties, Inc. and its Board of Directors have always
recogrized and effected the globally accepted tiwee (3) Dasic
principles of corporate governance: fairmess, ransparency, ard
accountability to all its stakeholders. shang Froperties adogted it
Corporate Governance Manual and submitted this 1o the Securnitics
and Exchange Commission in 2002,

The fallowing sections demonstrate the Comopany'’s compliance
weith these ornciples as detailed in the Manual during the Ainancal
vear ending December 31, 2014,

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and cortrol of the
Company and oversees it's businesses, strategic directions and
financial performance. It sets and provides the role medeling
for the Company’s values and stendards ensuring further that its
obligaions w the Company’s sharehalders are understood and
et Te this end, it assumes responsibility for strategy formutation,
camparate  governance, and  performance monstoring. The
managerment is delegated the authority and responsitilicy for the
administration of the Compamy within the control and authority
framewark sel by the Board, In addition, the Board has also
delegated various responsibilities to the Executive Committes, the
Audit Committes and the Momination Committee. Further details
of These committess are se1 oul in this annual report

Tre number of mestings held and the attendance record of the
Gpard members at these meetings for the last thiee (3) years are
as follerws:

Murmber of Mestings 1 ] e
Attendance -
Executive 100% ____'I{JD% Q4%

. Indegendent Non_—Execucive !%G;% GE% THO%
Average = . 87% 7% 245

*Meetings are held in the year-1e-date

Board minutes kept by the Corporate Secretary, are sent to the
Directars for records, and are open for inspection.

|
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Board Compesition

Tre Board 5 curently composed of five (S} Erecutive Cirectors and
ten (10 Man-Executive Directors ol which three (3) are Independent
Directars,

The Executive Directors are Messrs Wilfred Shan Chen Woeo,
Federica G. Moel Ir, Kinsun Andrew Mg, Koay Kean Choon and

s, Canila Begina | Fojas, The Mon-Executive Directors are Echward
Kuok Khoon Loang, Alfredo C Ramos, Maxime G, Licauco 1
Antonio O Cojuangco, Benjamin | Ramos, Cynthia Roxas del
Castillo, Manuel 8. Cosica, Ha Shut Kan, lohnny O Cobankize, and
Wilkie Lee. Masrs. Cobankiar, Cojuango and Cosico were elected
Ingiepencdant Directors. The biographies of the Directors are et
out on page 12 and 13 of this annual report, which demanstrate a
diversity of skills, expertise, experience and qualifications,

Drivigion of Responsibilities

The Board has agpointed a2 Chairman who has executive
responzsinilities and who provides leadership inestablishing policies
and business directions. The Chainman ensures that the Board
works eifectively, discharges its responsibilities, and discusses all
key and approfiate issues i a Timely manner.

The Expcutive Cirectors are tasked with the dav-to-day running
of the Company and are responsible for the different aspects of
Sharg Froperties Cusinesses,

Mon-Executive Direciors bring strong independent judgrent,
krioledge and experience to the Board's deliberations. Apart frarm
their appointments, the Non-Execstive Directars do nat have any
farm of service cantract with the Company ar any of its subsidiaries.

The Independent Directars take an aotive role in Board meetings,
participate in Board Commitiess, contribute 1o the development of
strategies anc policies, and take the lead when potential conflics
of interest arise.

Directars’ Re-clection and Removal
The Directors of the Company are elected during the annual

gensral meeting and naold office for one (10 year and untl thei
spccessors ae elected and deemead qualified.

4
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Access to Information

Al Directars are continually ugdated with legal and regulatary
developments, regularly receive comprehensive information about
business activities, Ainancial highlights and operations review of
the Compary's business and market changes, and developments
5o that they are up-to-date and are well-informed during Board
meetings and to facilitate in discharging their responsitilities,
Thie Board members are provided with Board gapers and relevant
matesials price to the intended meeting date, incleding Dusiness
and Anancial repors covering the Company’s principal business
acTivities and are at liberty to contact management for enquiries
and o obtzin further information, when required. All Girectors have
unrestricted access 1o the advice and services of the Corporate
Secretary, wha ensures that they receive agpropriate and timely
mfarmation for their decision-making and that Board procedures
are being follewed, The Directors can obiain independent
professicnal advice ar the Company's expense.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
fFxecuttve Committee

The Executiee Committee consists of Aee (5) members of the
Board. It mests regularly and aperates as a general management
cormmittes chaired by Wilfred Shan Chen Woo, an Executive
Cirectar and Cxecutive Assistant to the Chairman. The Executive
Committes meets to discuss the corporale end develapment
strategies of the Company.

Nomination Commitiee

Pursuant to its Corporate Governance Marual, the Board created
a Mamination Commiltee in August 2005 composed of three
(3} Dirscrars with at least ane (1) Independent Director of the
Cormpary. The commities acts in an advisery capacity and makes
recommendations 1o the Board. It promulgates the guidelines or
criteria to govern the conduct of the naminations of the Cirectors.
The same is groperly disclosed in the Company’s information
statement or as well as any reports that are submitted 1o the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the pregaration of the Anancial
staternents, which adopt generally accepted accounting standards
in the Prilippines, ensuring aporogriate socounting policies have
been used and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates have been made The auditng and
reparting on the Anancial staterments are the primary responsibility
of the external auditor whose “Auditors Regort™to the shareholders
is included in this annual report.

Toweards the end of the vear, the Boaid reviews the financial
progections of the group for the Ainancial vear ending 31 Decamber
or any given year The Board has continued o adopt a aaing
concern basis in preparing the financial statements o ensurs that
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
affect the Compary's ability 10 manage effectively are met

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adeguate system of
internal cantrols and reviewing their effectiversss. The systam
of internal contrel is designad o facilitate effective and efficient
operations, safequard its assets, and ensure that the quality of
internzl and external reporting comply with applicable faws and
reguiztions. In establishing internal controls, the Company has
taken into consideration the nature and extent of the Company's
business, cperationzl and Anancial rsks, the likelinood  of
crystallization of such risks, and the casts of implementing the
relevant internal controls, These intermal controls are designed to
manace, bur not eliminate, the risk of failure o achieve business
abjectives and provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against the risks of material misstaternent, fraud or losses,

Dwring the year ended 31 Cecember 2014, the Board, through
the Audit Committes, reviewed the risks and evaluated the
internal contral Famework that operates within the Comgany
and corsidered that the systermn of internal cantrals in operatian
is effective.

Mere detzils on the Company's internal control frarmework and the
Board's process 1o evaluate its system of internal controls is set out
it the section headed internal controls an page 16 of this annual
report.

| 3
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Auwdit Commitiee

Pursuant to its Corparate Governance Manual, the Board created

an Audit Committes in August 2002 currently camposed of

Independent Mon-Executive Directors, Each member i5 required
ro hawve at least an adequate understanding of or competence
on mest of the Company's financial management systems and
ERVITOnIment.

The majar respansibilities of the Audiz Cammiltee are:

To check that all Anancial reparts comply with pertinent
accounting standards, including regulatony requirsments;
To parform oversight fingncial manegement functions
specifically in the areas of managing credit, market,
liquidity, operational, legal and other risks of the Company,
and crisis management,

To perform dirsct imterface functions with 1he internal and
axternal auditors;

+  To elevate 1w international standards the accounting

and auditing processes, practices and methadologies,
and 1w develop, among others, 2 timetable within which
the accourting systermn of the Company will be 100%
compliant with International Accounting Standards,
To develop a ransparent financial managerment system
that will ensure the integiity of internal contral activities
throughout  the Company  Thiough a  slep-ty-step
pracedures and policies handbook that will be used by
the entirg crganization,

The number of meetings held znd the allendance record of the
Carmmittes mambers at these meetings for the last three [3) vears
are as follows:

J0i5% . 2014

Murmbser of Commities

) 1 a 3
JEgHRgH:

Attendance 100% il

*restings are held in the year-to-date
Aunditor’s Remuneration

Cruring the Ainancizl year ended 31 December 2014, the fees paid /
oayabie 1o the auditor inrespect of the audit and non-audic services
pravided by the external asditor (o the Company amounted to
Php32 million.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Boarg iz respansible for maintaining and reviewing the
effactiveness of e Company's system of imernal controls, The
internal controls are designed to mest the Comgany’s particular
needs, minimize the risks to which it 5 exposed, manage rather
than eliminate the risks to achieve business abjectives, and pravide
reasanatle but not absolute assurance against misstaterments or
losses, The Company’s internal contrel framework covers () the
setting of objectives, budaets, and targerts; (i) the establshrment of
regular reporting of financial information, in particular, the racking
of deviations between actual performances and budgets/targets;
fiii} the delegation of authority; and (iv] the estaklishment of clear
lines of accounability.

Strategies and abjectivesafthe Camgany asawhale are determined
by the Board, Budgets are presared annuslly gnd reviewsd by
the Board. In implementing these strategies and achigving these
objectives, each Executive Direcior has specific responsibiliies
far manitoring the canduct and operations of individual business
units within the Company, This includes the review and aporowal
of business strategies and plans, the sefting of business-relatad
performance targets as well as the design and implementation of
internal contrals,

Feriodic fingngial information s provided 1o the  Executive
Directors, Varance analysis Detween actual performances and
targets are prepared and documented for discussion at Board
meetings, with explanations noted for any material varances and
deviations between actual performances and budgets [ targets
This helps the Board and the Company's Management ro monitor
it's Business operations and to plan on a prodent and timesly basis,
Other reqular and ad had reparts are prepared for the Board and s
WATNDUS Committess, (o enaure that the Cirectars are provided with
all the requested information in 2 timely and appropriate manner.

To allow for delegation of authority as well as 1o enhance
segregation of duties and accountability, a clear arganizational
structure exists detailing diferent levels of autharity and control
respansitilities within each Business unit of the Company, Certain
specific matters are reserved for the Board®s dedision and cannct
be delegated, These include, amang others, the aporoval of annual
and intzrirm results, anral budgers, capital structure, declaration of
dividends, matedzl ecouisitions, disposals and capital expendituras,
Board structurs and its campositian and successian,

Ir addition, the Board alse monitors its internal controls through
a program of internal audits. The imernal audil team reviews The
major operational, fnancial and risk management controls of the
Company on a continuing basis, and aims to cover all its maor
operations on a rotational basis. The scope of review and The audis
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prograrm of the internal audit team, farmulated and based on a risk
assessment approach, with focus on areas with relatively higher
perceived risks, are appraved by the Audit Committes at the end
of the preceding finzncial year in conjunction with the Company’s
senior management. During its wisits, the internal audit team also
ensures that appropriate contrals are in place and deficiendies o
irregularities (if any) are rectified,

The internal audit function reports directhy 1o the Auwdit Committee.
Accordingly, regular internal audit reports are circulated to the
Audit Committes members, the Chief Finangial Officer, and the
external auditors for review in accordance with the approved
internal audit program.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Investor Relations
Communication Channels

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investor’
relationship procrem with its shareholders, the Company has
established various channels of communication:

Shareholders can raise any cormments an the performance
and future directions of the Company with the Cirectars
al the annual general rmeeting.

i) rEsults

The Company distributes  the  annual

sharehalders.

L]

il The  Company's  website  wwawshangproperties.,
com  contains  important  corporate  infarmation,
biographical details of Directors and seniar management,
organizational structure, annual and interim  reports,
major historical develapments with caomarehensive and
wser-friendly information about the Company, as well as
announcements and circulars issued by the Company
in arder to enatle the Company's shareholders and the
investor community 1o have tmely access to updated
information.

Sharehalders and members of the investor community
are welcome o raise enguiriss through the  Legal
Department, whose contact details are availzble in the
Company’s website wwwshangproperties.com

i)

o
I

General Meetings

I, The general meeting provides 2 forum for the Board 10
communicate with the sharehalders of the Company,

2. Tofacilitate enforcement of shareholders'rights, significant
iszues are dealt with yncer separate resglutions at general
meetings.

3. The 2014 Annual Stockholders Meeting of the Company

was held on 24 June 2014 at the Falawan Ballroom, -
Edsa Shangri-La, Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City. The
following resclutions were passed during the meeting:

1. To adopt the audited hnancial statements and
the report of the directors and the auditors for the
fnancizl year ended 31 December 2013,

Ta ratify the acts of the Board of Directors and
the Managerment since the annual mesting of
stockholders held on 26 June 2012,

To elect the members of the Board of Cirectars for the
year 2014-2015, namely: Edward Euck Khoon Loong,
Alfredo C. Ramos, Wilfred Shan Chen Weoo, Federico
G. Mesl Ir, Kinsun Andrew Mg, Koay kKean Chaon,
Danila Regina | Fojas, Johnny O, Cobankiat, Antanio
0. Cojuangeo, Manuel M, Cosico, Cyntiia Roxas del
Castillo, Ho Shut Kan, Wilkie Lee, Maximo &, Licauco
I, and Benjarmin |, Ramos.

To re-appoint SGV as external auditors for the year
2014-2015.
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STOCK BEHAVIOR: QUARTERLY SHARE PRICE

For the past thres (3) years, the Comparny's share prices have traded as follows:

- Low ez e HIGHERE S FOW.
{in Php). {in Php) : “ (in'Php)" {inPhp):

First Quarter

5%?[@ﬂd.‘(lk_!|§tt.§_‘_r :

STOCK PERFORMANCE

Dividends
For the year 2014, the Board of Qirectors declared total cash dividends of Phpad2 Million (201 3:Phps24 Million)
Shareholder Profile

As of 31 Decernber 2014, the Company had 5,457 stockholders. Comman shares outstanding as of sad date are 4 764,058 982 The
Campany’s stackholders owning at least 5% or mare of the comman shares cutstanding as of 31 December 2014 arce:

Shareholders i : Mo, of Shares T Percentage

*This cormpany 15 a wholly owned subsidiary of Kerry Bropertiss Umited

1.9
SHANG PROPERTIRS | 2014




Ten Year Financial Summary

P s 2012
2013 srestated!
Profit and loss account = . Php ‘000 Php'0on | Fhp'000 ]
Turnover 7,612,188 6008465 | 5406229
Operating profit : 4351455 | saastes | 2574363 |
Interest expense & bank charges _ (227,066) (184,962 (172,280
Share in proft (loss) of associated companies | (9,693 (4674 29,491
Profit before taxation 411469 | 3054530 | 2431575 B
Taxation ) _ {995.502) (751,430) (536,193)
| Profit after taxation o - | smgaea | 2303100 | 1,895,382
tinority interests (383,818) (291,827) {248,905]
| Income/{loss) ) _ . x
Pruﬂ;- attributable to sharehg_lders - | 2735376 lf,rﬁ!‘j 1,273 1,646,477 3 B
| Assets and liabilities - o 1
I |
Fixed assets 38,389,161 27,295,207 25,506,150
Associaled company 410,790 | 2,441,310 2,514,448 L
Cther assets f8,494 37,286 42956
Met currEnt_asse'ts.-"{liabi]iliesj 9,342,797 5,257,295 | 4,563,719
s i . - 48,211,242 | 35031098 | 32627270 |
| Lang term ligkilities [20,606,779) | {10,240,307) (9,474,933}
Total equity B 27,514,462 | 24,790,791 23,152,338 |

20
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] Php 000 Php000 Php'000 | Php'000 Php’000 Php 000 Php ‘000
3,589,163 2,797,513 4030408 | 3781157 | 3,108,922 1,587,373 1,669,145
""" 2,070,157 1865515 | 2137487 1,905,348 1,220915 | 474036 569,277
. (213,337) 261892)|  (313261)]  (29874a) (54,125) (50,542) (58,285)
i 19,967 84,238 (2,724) 4,672 127,695 62,370 | 77,740 |
B 1876787 | 1687860 | 1821502 | 1611276 1,294,485 | 485,864 588,733 |
B (514785)|  (402,266) (319,475) (509,645) (306,520) 152,753 206,760 |
| 62002 | 1285584 | 1502027 1,101,631 _987,965|  ©38617| 795493
(305,286] | (284891)|  (330,539) (221,831 (43,369] (30,675) (23,964} |
944,596 607,942 771,529
1056716 | 1,000,703 1,171,459 879,801 944,506 607,942 771,529
24961947 | 24217513 | 24068278 | 24500533 | 16677884 14,757,807 14,813,853
- 2480863 | 1,834,046 1,742,445 1,736,745 1,537,670 1,335,602 1,567,231 |
29,575 | 417,677 418,724 | 403,873 36,804 9,073 7458
_______ 4,061,180 4,897,750 4,171,218 3376368 | 3068579 2889756 2367893
31533564 | 31366986 | 30400666 | 30,017,520 | 21520938 |  18992237| 18756435
197430851 (9915737)|  (9683477)| (10353,073) |  (4760440)| (42949571  (4,2499252)
20790379 | 21451248 | 20717189 | 19,664.446 | 16,760,495 14,697,280 14,257,183
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Statement of Management's Responsibility

for the Financial Statements

March 27, 2015

To the Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, ED3A, Greenhills
City of Mandaluyong, Metra Manila

The management of Shang Properties, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consalidated Anancial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, including the additional compoenents atiached
therein, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes designing and
implementing internal cantrols relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errer, selecting and applying appropriate
accounting palicies, and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the crcumstances,

The Board of Directors reviews and appraves the consolidated financial statements and submits the same to the
stockholders,

SyCip Gorres Yelayo & Co., the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders have examined the consolidated
financial staternents of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the

stockhalders, have expressed their opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examinaticn.

cigned under cath of by the follewing:

dward Kuok
Chairman of the Board

éjmh/

Wilfred Woo
Executive Assistant to the Chairman

£

Vice-President - Group Financial Controllers Acting Chief Financial Gfficer

22
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Audit Committee Report

The Audit Cammittee of The Board has been established since
2002 is composed of three (3) Directors, one (1) Executive
and twa (2] Mon-executive Directors, of whom 2 (two) are
independent directors and with audit experience. The chair of
the Audit Commitiee 15 an independent director.

The Audit Committee operates pursuant to the approved
Audit Committee Charter, |n general, the Audit Committes
is responsible for assisting the Board in its responsibilities in
monitoring the integrity of the Group's financial reporting
process, the financial statements and reports of the Company,
the compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the external auditor's qualiiications and independence, and
the performance of the Groups internal audit functicn and
external auditor

In performing its responsibilities, set cut below is a summary
af the work performed by the Audit Committee during the
hnancial year ended 31 Decemnber 2014,

it The Audit Committee reviewed the draft annual and
interim financial statements and the draft results
annauncements of the Company, focusing on main
areas of judgment, consistency of and changes in
accounting policies and adequacy of information
disclasure prior to recomnmending them to the
Board for approval.

it The aAudit Committee reviewed, in conjunction
with the external auditar, the developments of
accounting standards and assessed their potential
impacts on the Group's inancial statements.

(i) The Audit Committes assessed the independence
of the Company's external auditor, prior to formally
engaging the external auditor to carry out the audit
far the Company's financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014,

il Priorto the actual commencement of the audit, the
Audit Cammittee discussed the proposed scope of
work and approach of the audit with the external
auditor. Upoen completion of the audit, the Audir
Committee reviewed the results of the external
audit, and discussed with the external auditor cn
any significant findings and audit issues,

vl The Audit Committee recommended to the Board
regarding the appointment and remuneration of
the external auditor.

(wit' The Audit Committee reviewed and approved the
internal audit pragram, reviewed the internal audit
reports and discussed any significant issues with
the internal audit team and the Groups senior
managemem.

33
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(Wil The Audit Committes reviewesd the independence of
the internal audit function and the level of support
and co-operation given oy the Group's management
to the internal audit team, as well as the resources of
the internal audit team when undertaking its duties
and responsitilities,

(i) The Audit Committee reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveress of the Groups systems of internal
controls, through a review if the work undertaken
by the Group's internal and external auditor, written
representations by the senior management of each
of the Group's business divisions and discussions
wiith the Board,

{ix)  The Audit Committes evaluated the sufficiency and
effectiveness of the risk management processes and
fraud prevention through a review of the company’s
Enterprise  Risk Managerment and  the Whistle
Blowing Policy.

Ciuring the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit
Committee met three times and the Aodit Committee also
conducted meetings with the Group's senior managemant,
the external auditor and the internal audit team from time
to time, Minutes of the Audit Committes Meetings are
documented and circulated to the Board for information, The
Audit Committee also reports and presents its findings and
makes recommendations for consideration and discussion at
Board meetings.

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial staterments
af the Group for the year ended 31 December 2074 prios to
recommending them to the Board for approval.

Members of the Audit Committes:

MR. JOHNNY 1, COBANKIAT
Chatrman

MR, ALFREDO C. RAMOS
Mernber

MR. MANUEL M. CO5ICO
Member
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The Stockholders and the Board of Dircctors
Shang Properties, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying cansolidated financial statements of Shang Properties, Inc. and Subsidiaries, which ecmprise the
canselidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the conselidated statements of comprehensive
income, siatements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows far each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2014,
and 2 summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informaticn.

Management's Responsibility for the Conselidated Financial Statements

Manzgement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consclidated financial slaterments in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines 1s necessary Lo enable the preparation
of cansolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o Fraud or error,

Auditors® Responsibility

Clur responsibility is to express an apinion an these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
in aceordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable sssurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are Cree from material
misstaterment.

An audit invalves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and disclosures in the consalidated financial
statoments, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, mcluding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consalidated financial statements, whether due te fraud ar error. Tn making those risk assessments. the auditor considers internal
control relevant ta the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidaled financial statements in arder 1o design audit
procedures that are zppropriate in the circumstances, but nat for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal contral, An audit alse incledes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies wsed and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall preseatation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that
the audit evidense we have ebtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opiaion.

Opinion

Inn our apinien. the conselidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial positan of Shang Properties.
Inc. and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and their financial performance and their cash Nows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2014 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAY D & CO.

Lodeud s R %u___
Arnel F, De Jesus

Parner

CFA Certificate Mo, 423285

SEC Accreditation Mo, 0075-AR-3 (Group A),
February 14, 2013, valid until Febroary 13, 2016
Tax dentification Mo, 152-884-385

BIR Accreditation Mo, DE-001958-15-2012,
June 19,2012, valid until June 18, 2015

PTR Mo 4751272, January 5, 2005, Makati City

Wlarch 27,2013
24
SHAMNG PROPERTIES | 2014



SHAMNG PROPERTIES, INC, AMD SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

December 33

2014

2013

ASSETS

Current Asscts
(ash and cash equivalents (Note 3)

#2,911,004 820

B1.291 446 943

Financial asscts at [ar value through profit or loss (Mote &) 33,012,524 30 348 704
Receivables (Motes 7 and 31) 4,162,249,384 3534 271 525
Propertics held for sale (Mote B) 5,773,117,694 2.443.509.795
Prepayments and other current assets (MNote 9) 1,805,192,006 497,659,236
Tatal Current Assets 14,684,576,428 §.397,236,203
Moncurrent Assels
[vestments in associates (Mote 10) 410,790,229 2441310290
Investmend properties (Mot 13) 27108674348 20,743,225 950
Real estate development projects (Note 14) 11,211,283,922 d84 885 587
Available-for-sale financial assets (Nate 1.5) s02,822.842 302322 842
Property and equipment {Note 15) GT009,417 67,093,620
Goodwill (Notes 12 and 17) 269,870,864 -
Relundable deposits 63,493,754 37T 280,169
Deferred income tax assels - net (Note 29) 356,407,945 371,956,483
Total Noncurrent Asscis 39,997,546,462 30648082941
TOTAL ASSETS PS4.682,122,890  B39,(45.319,144
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts pavable and other current liabililies (Motes 18 and 31) B4 883213157 B 631,001,467
Current portion off

Bank loans (Note 19 583,333,333 647,619 048

Deposils from tenants (Maole 20) 484,423,000 616,747 724

Delerred lease income (MNote 20) 15,163,625 25628312
Dividends pavable (Mole 22) 104,204,980 20,844 007
[ncome tax pavable 127,582,324 49379 716
Total Current Liabilities 6,201,010,419 4,014 220 474
Noocurrent Liabilitics
Acorued emploves benelits (Note 27) 68,502,035 40,235,076
Bank loans - net of owrrent portion (Mote 19) 11,565,335,572 4 0% §33 2713
Dreposit for future stock subscription (Note 12) 1,959 ({0,000

Deferred income tax liabilitics - nct (Note 29)

i, 359,901,691

5,500, 560,988

Deposils from tenants - nel of current portion (Mote 20) 494,021,017 J3R 066023
Dieferved lease moome - net of current portion (Mote 200 204,018,732 63,391 879
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 20,6%6,779,247 [0,240,507 301
Tatal Liahilities 26,807, 789,666 14,254,527 775

{Forward)
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December 31

2014 2013

EQUITY

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company;

Capital stock (Motc 21)

Additional paid-in capital

Treasury shares (Mole 21)

Retamed carnings (Motes 21 and 22)

Other components of equity (Motes 13 and 27)

P4,764,058,982  Pd,764,058,9%2

834,439,607 134,439,607
(6,550,064 (6,850,064)
15,234,935,332  16,142,418,632
(8,046,511) 342,764

Equity atiributable to non-controlling interests (Mote 11)

23,818,537,346  21,734,400921
3965795878 1056381448

Total Equity

27,784,333,224 24790791 365

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P54,682,122,800  BF3D.045319 144

See gecompanying Notes o Conralidated Fimeneiol Statements.
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SHANG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
REVENUES
Condemininm sales B3,764,277893 P3.935170,304 F2.698,045 454
Rental 2,624,893.6406 2338990151 1348, 760511
Cinema 40,367,560 56,448,800 33000582
6,449 530,099 6,330,604 264 4,599,803 549
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of condominim sales (Note 24) 2442 444,122 2,941,004, 104 2,224 877904
Eall costs (Mote 26) 295,539,144 241,330,108 221,058 534
Taxes and licenses (Mote 25) 205,446,842 145,063,414 14 573,177
CGeneral and administrative (MNote 23) 193,324,687 150,933,328 207,934,174
Unreimbursed share in common expenses (Note 28) 85043421 96,092 860 11,051,866
Depreciation and amortization (Mote 16) 20,414,157 18,177,995 16,580.301
Insurance 17,620,267 15681 448 11,780,537
3,260,732 640 3,664,299 258 2,831 863707
OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)
Interest (Mote 23) 269,361,029 279426 867 2R 513613
Cains on:
Remeasurement arising from business
combinations (Nate 12) 324,431,141 - -
Reversal of impairment [oss on real estate
development project (Note 14} - 181,954,047 -
Fair value adjustment of investment
propenies (Mote 13) - - 400,126,054
Forgign exchange pains (losses) - net 880,730 4,081,797 (2B7L943)
Others - nel (MNote 23) 67,975,685 112,302 331 124,555,744
_ 1,162,648 585 577,835,592 806,323 468
SHARE IN NET EARNINGS (LOS3ES) OF
ASSOCIATES (MNole 1) (9,692,903) (4674070 20490674
INTEREST EXPENSE AND BANK CHARGES
(Mote 23) 227,066,344 184 901 863 172,279 478
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 4,174 ,695,797 3,054, 529,650 2.431,574.506
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Nate 2%) 995,501,739 751,429,724 536,192,511

NET INCOME

3,119,194,058

2,303,099,932

LEISIRLDY9S

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOS55)
Items that may be reclassified o profis or loss:
Change in fair value of available-for-gale

financial assets, net of tax effcct (Note 15) J50,000 210,000 TIT,000
Translation adjustments 17,554 536,540 {415 8500
Tems that will nel be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remessurement pains (losses) on defined
benefit Hability, net of iy effect (Note 27) (8,750,429 23,248,589 (25.557.602)
(8,3589,275) 24015129 (25, 196,452)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME B3,110804,783 B2 32T 115061 P1ATHIES543

(Forvard)
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Years Ended Decermber 31

2014 2013 2012
Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company B2,735375946 P2O11272641 BLO4GATTNGT
Non-conirolling inkerests 383,818,112 291,827,291 248,5‘04.‘3{;_3__
B3119194 058 23030994952 P1,A95 381,995
Total comprehensive income attributable (o
Equity holders of the Parent Company P2,720,986.671 B O35 287770 P1.62 1L280,585
MNon-controlling interests 383,818,112 201,827,191 248,004 958
B3,110.804,783 B2 327115061 B1ET0 185,543
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS
PER SHARE (Mot 309
Based on not income B(L5T4 B, 422 BO 346G
Based on total comprehengive income B{.573 0,427 B340
See accomparning Notes to Consolidated Finameial Starements.
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SHANG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements

of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES .
Income belore income (ax B4, 114,095,797 B3.054,529,036 E2.431.574.506
Adjustments for:
Interest income Mote 23) (269,301,029 (279,426,807 (284,513,613
Interest expense (Mote 23) 225,860,264 184,388 327 164,926,573
Losses (gains) on:
Remeasurement arising rom business
combinations (Mote 12} {824,431,141) = -
Reversal of impairment loss on real eslate
development project (Note 14) - (181,954,697 -
Disposal of investment in associate
{Mote 23) - (17438767 -
Sale of propery and cquipment (MNote 23) - (216,983) (163.335)
Fair value adjusiment of investment
properbes (Mote 13) - {400, 126.054)
Derecognition of long-cuistanding
labilities (Mote 23) - - {B.836,460)
Depreciation and amortization {MNote 16) 20,414,157 18,177,996 16,580,501
Dhividend income (Mote 23) (15,234,198) (18,823 456) (34,695511)
Share in net losses (prefits) of associates
(Mole 10y 9,692,903 4,674,074 {29,490,674)
Adjustinent of linancial assets at far value
through profit or oss (Mote 23) (2563,520) 1,926,942 (4950, 110
Provision for Bad debls (Mole 25) 982,363 = 11436470
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) - net (880,730) (3,515,257) 2272111
Operaling income before working capital changes 3250074 566 202311023 184,027 200
Drecrease (Ingrease) in:
Reccivables (390,351.260) (1.940.033,657 315,760,540
Properties lield for sale (2,544,722,312) 906,915,626 (839.667,226)
Real estate development project - (21890467 -
Prepayments and other current assets (469,044 442) (40,082 817 42048224
Increase {decrease) in:
Accounts payahle and other corrent liabilities 1,803,634,063 BO8, 743,103 {359,704, 790
Dreferred lonse income 56,038,034) 16499217 1832673
Accmed employves benefils 15,762,280 (230, 786) 4 989,791
Cash generaled from operations 1,318,314 861 2,573,231,240 LOE8 306412
Income taxes paid (745,899,225) (607,138,948) (456279 640)
Interest received 32,141480 51,380,706 47,843,192
MNet cash provided by operating activities 604,557,122 2,017 481,998 A09 B thad

(Fornward)
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Years Ended Deeember 31

2014 20135 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Addilions 1o

Investment properties (Mole 13) {B367,641,538)  (B1 380 435 591) (B133,390,1700

Property and equipment {Mote 16} (17,541,185) (14,706,250 (27 TRT.692)

Invesiment in associate (Note 10) (15,000,0040) {6,100, 000 {4.092,223)
Proceeds from sale of!

Property and couipment - 567,171 259,608

Invesiment in associate (Mote 10) - 92 000,000 -
Dividends received 15,234,198 L8823 450 34693511
Acquisition of 3 subsidiary,

net of cagh acquired (MNote 12) (1, 465,048,492) - -
Decrense in real eslate development projects 284,877,078 -
Decrease (increase) in refundable deposils (15,931,785) 5,669,539 {13.380,985)
Hel cash used m investing activities (1.581,051,724) {1,493241 675) (123,895 953)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from loan availment,

mel of debl issue costs (Mot 199 3,754.330 434 1,400 00 000 1,000 000,000
Paviments of’

Loun principal (Mote 149} (647,619,045) {952 DRO,952) (B0G,U83711)

Interest (Note 19) (168,584 ,440) (182,181,047) (164,423,225)
Cash dividends paid to:

Stockholders (559408,273) (520,922 320 (388,259,760

Mon-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries (376,800,000% i 164,8350,00{0) (117,750,000)
Increase {decrease) in deposits from tenants {6,593,557) 183,105 542 158,338,213
Met cash provided by (used ing financing activilics 1,533,116 (237.328,486) (319 (180 453)
NET EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE

CHANGES ON CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (Mot 5) 721,363 4 O, T9T (2 6R7.961)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 1019557 877 290,493,034 164, 205,567
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,891 446,943 1,600,953,309 1,436,747,742
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR B2,911,004,520 Bl E9] 4406043 P1.600,953 304

Eee aecompanying Notes to Consolfdated Financial Statements.
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SHANG PROPERTIES, INC. AND SURSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate Information and Authorization for Issue of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Shang Properties, Inc. (the Parent Company), a corporation duly organized and eusting in the
Philippings, was incorporated and registered wath the Philippine Securitics and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on October 21, 1987 to acquire, own, develop, subdivide, sell, maortgage,
exchange, lease or hold for nvestment, real estate of all kinds.

The Parent Company’s registered office address, which 15 also its principal place of business, is
Administration Office, Shangri-La Plaza Mall, EDSA comer Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City.

The Parent Company’s and Subsidiaries’ (collectively referred to as the Group) businesses include
property investment and development, real estate management, leasing, mall and carpark operations,

Shang Propertics Realty Corporation (SPRC. a wholly owned subsidiary) 1s the developer of The
Shang Grand Tower Project (TSGT), located in Makati City, The St. Francis Shangn-La Place
Froject (TSFSP) and the One Shangri-La Place Project (OSP), hoth located in Mandaluyong City.

Shang Property Developers, Inc. (SPDI, a wholly owned subsidiary) is the developer of Shang
Salceda Place Project (SSP), located i Makati City.

Acquisition of 20% Eegquity Interest in Shang Global City Praperties. Ine. (RGP and Fort
Ronifocio Shangri-lo Hotel, Ine. (FBSHI) frem a Third Party

On April 30, 2014, the Parent Company, through its wholly owned subsidiarics. Shang Global City
Holdings, Inc. (SGCHI) and Shang Fort Bonifacio Holdings, Inc. (SFBHI), acquired additional 20%
interest in SGCPI and FBSHI, respectively, which were owned by a third party for a purchase price
of R1,700,000,000. Prior to the acquisition, the Group owned 40% cquity interest in SGCPL and
FBSHI. On December 17, 2014, the SEC approved the merger of SGCPI and FBSHI, with SGCPI
as the surviving enlity (see Mote 12),

Incarporation of The Rise Development Company, Ine. (TROC)

In 20173, the Board of KRC approved the redevelopment of its real estate project (see Note 14), As
such, on April 22, 2014, The Rise Development Company, Inc. (TRDCT was incomporated and
registered with the SEC. On the same date, KRC transferred its contractual obligations in The Fise
Project located in Makati City to TRDCE As of December 31, 2014, the project is 1.88% completed.

Authorization for Issue of the Consolidated Financial Statements :
The consolidated financial statements have been approved and authorized for issue in accordance

with a reselution of the Board of Directors (the Board) on March 27, 2013,

Summary of Significant Accounting and Financial Reporting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The cansolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except for
investment properties, financial asscts at fair value through profit or loss (FV PL) and available-fior-
sale (AFS) financial assets that have been measured ab fair value. The consolidated financial
statements of the Group are presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), which 1s the Parent Company’s
functional and presentation currency, with amounts rounded to the nearcst Peso
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Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS) as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC).

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and
all of its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2014,

Subsidiarics are entitics over which the Group has control. Contral is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the subsidiary. Specifically, the Group controls the
subsidiary if and only if the Group has:

*  Power over the subsidiary (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activitics of the subsidiary),

»  Exposure, or rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the subsidiary, and

= The ability to use its power over the subsidiary to affect its retums,

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investec,
meluding:

»  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee,
*  Rights arising from other contractual arrangements, and
*  The Group’s vating rights and potential voting rights,

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes 1o one ar more of the three elements of control.  Consolidation of a subsidiary
begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Ciroup lozes control
of the subsidiary. Asscts, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the vear are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the date
the Group gams control until the date the Group ceases to contral the subsidiary.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, withaut a loss of control, is accounted for as an
cquity transaction, 1f the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

= Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,

= Dcrecognizes the carrving amount of any NCI

»  Derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity.

»  Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received.

*  Recognizes the fair value of any mvestment retained.

»  Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss.

= Reclassifics the parent’s share of compenents previously recognised in OCH to profit or loss or
retained carnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or habilities.
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Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed (o the equity holders
of the Parcnt of the Group and to the non-centrolling interests, even if this results in the NCI having
a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made Lo the financial statements of subsidiaries
to align their accounting policies with the Group’s accounting policics.  All intra-group asscts and
liabilities, cquity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company, using consistent accounting policies.

The following are the subsidiaries for which the Parent Company acts as the princpal decision
maker:

Effective Percentages of Ownership

204 2013

Property Development:

SPRC 100.00% 100 00

SPDI 100.00% 100.00%

TRDCI {Note 14) 100.00% -

SGCPT (MNote 12) 60.00%% $0%*
Leasing;

SPS1 100004 L0000

SLPC 104000 100.00%

KSA 52.90% 52.90%
Real Estate:

IFPI 100.00% 100.00%,

KRC 100.00%% 100.00%

MBFI 100,00% 100, 00%

MNCRI 100,005 100.00%

PEl L0000 100.00%

SFEHI 100.00% 100 Q0%

SGCHI 1HLOD Y 100, 00%
Property Management:

EMSC 100.00% 100.00%

SPMSI 100.00% 100.00%
Others:

Gipsey (BVI Company) 100.00%, 100_00%,

SHIL (BVT Company) 100.00%: 100 00%

ELHI 60,00%% 60, 00%

®y 2013, the Group accounted for its interest in SGOPL ag investment In associate,

Except for Gipsey and SHIL, which were incorporated in the British Virgin [slands, all the other
subsidiarics were incorporated in the Philippines.

Changes in_Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for

the following new, amended and improvements to PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards {PAS)
and Philippine Interpretations from International Financial Reportmg Interprefations Comnuttoe
(IFRIC) which the Group has adopted during the year, However, they do not impact the
consolidated financial statements of the Group, unless otherwise stated below:
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Investment Entities (Amendments to PFRS 10, Convolidated Financial Stetemenis, PFRS 12,
Diselosure of Inferests in Other Entities, and PAS 27, Separate Financial Statemenis)

These amendments provide an exception 1o the consolidation requirement for entitics that meet
the definition of an mvestment entity under PFRS 10, The exception to consolidation requires
investment entities to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss.  The
amendments must be applisd retrospectively, subject to certain transition relief.

PAS 32, Financial [nstruments: Presentation - Offsetiing Financial Assets and Financial
Lighilities (Amendiments)

These amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally enforezable nght to setoft
and the eriteria for non-simultaneous settlement mechanisms of cleanng houses to qualify for
offsetting and are applied retrospectively.,

PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivaifves and
Continuation af Hedge Accowning (Amendments)

Tliese amendments provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria and retrospective application
15 required.

PAS 36, Impairment of Assets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets

{ Amendments)

These amendments remeve the unintended consequences of PERS 13, Fair Value Measurement,
on the disclosures requited under PAS 36, In addition, these amendments require disclosure of
the recoverable amounts for assels or cash-generating units (CGUs) for which impairment loss
has been recognized or reversed during the pericd.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies

[FRIC 21 clarifics that an entity recognizes a liability for a levy when the activity that triggers
pavment, as identified by the relevant legislation, occurs. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation clarifies that no liability should be anricipated
before the specified minimum threshald is reached. Retrospective application is required for
IFRIC 21,

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cyele) (PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement)

In the 2010 — 2012 annual improvements cyele, seven amendments to six standards were issued,
which included an amendment to PFRS 13, Fair Folue Measirement, The amendment to
PFRS 13 is effective immediately and it clarifies that short-term receivables and payables with
no stated intersst mtes can be measured at invoice amounts when the effeet of discounting is
immaterial.

Annual Tmprovements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle) (PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PERS)

In the 2011 — 2013 annual improvements cyele, four amendments to four standards wore issucd,
which included an amendment to PFRS |, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards—{rst-time Adoption of PFRS, The amendment to PFRS | s cffective
mmmediately. Tt clarifies that an entity may choose to apply either a current standard ar a new
standard that is not yet mandatory, but permits early application, provided either standard is
applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the entity’s first PFRS financial
staterents.
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Future Changes in Accgunting Policies

New standards issucd but not yvet effective as at the date of issuance of the conselidated financial
statements arc histed below. This is a listing of standards and interpretations issued, which the Growp
reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date. The Group intends to adopt these standards
when they become effective.

«  PFRS 9. Financial Instruments — Classification and Measurement (2010 version)

FFRS 9 (2010 version) reflects the first phasc on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to the
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in PAS 39, Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. PFRS 9 requires all financial assets to be measured
at fair value at initial recognition. A debt financial asset may, if the fair value option (FVO) 15
not invoked. he subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model
that has the objective to hold the assets to collect the contractual cash flows and its contractual
terins give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding. Al other debt instruments are subsequently measured at
fair value threugh profit or loss. All equity financial assets are measured at fair value cither
through other comprehensive income (OCT) or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held for
trading must be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For FVO liabilities. the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attnibutable to changes in credit nisk must be
presented in OCL The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Al other PAS 39 classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been camied forward into PFRS 9,
including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria for using the FYO. The
adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial assets, but will potentially have no impact on the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities,

PFRS 9 (2010 version) is effective far annual periods beginning on or after January 1. 2015,
This mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 2018 when the final version of PFRS ¥
was adopted by the Philippine Financial Reporling Standards Council (FRSC). Such adeption,
however, is still for approval by the Board of Accountancy (BOA).

*  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreemenis for the Construction of Real Istate

This interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entitics that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors, The mterpretation
requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upen completion, except
when such contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11 or
involves rendering of services in which case revenue is recognized based on stage of
completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction materials and where
the risks and teward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis will also be
accounted for based on stage of completion, The SEC and the FRSC have deferred the
clfeetivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASE) and an evaluation of the requircments of the final Revenue
standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed, The adoption
of this interpretation will result to a change in the revenue and cost recognition from percentage
of completion method to completed contract method, The Group is stll monitoring the impact
of this new interpretation to its consolidated financial statements.
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The following new standards and amendments issued by the TASE were already adopted by the
FRSC but are shll for approval by BOA,

fiffecrive Jarmary £, 2043

= PAS 19, Emplovee Bencfits — Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Confributions (Amendments)

PAS 19 requires an enlity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they should
be atiributed to periods of scrvice as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify that, if the
amount of the contribimions 1s independent of the number of vears of service, an entity is
permitted lo recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost o the penod in
which the servige is rendered, mnstead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service.
This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, 11 is not
expected that this amendment would be relevant to the Group, since none of the entities within
the Group has defined benefit plans with contributions from emplevess or third parties.

= Annual Improvements to PERSs (2010-2012 cvele)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010-2012 cvele) are effective Tor annual periods
beginning on or after January |, 2015 and are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group. They include:

v PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condifion;

*  PFRS 3, Businesy Combinations — Accounting for Contingent Consideration in o Eusiness
Combination;

= PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of
the Toral of the Reportable Segments” Assets o the Enrite's dssets;

»  PERS 13, Frir Falue Measurement — Shori-term Receivables and Payables;

= PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment Revalwation Method - FProportionate
Restatement of Aconmulated Depreciation.

v PAS 24, Related Farty Disclosures - Rey Managemeni Personne!: and

«  PAS 38 Jmrangible Assets  Revabwition Method  Proporionate Restarement of
Acciemulated Amartization.

= Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2011-2013 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFESs (2001-2013 cvels) are cffective for annual periods
beginning on or after Jamary 1, 2015 and are not expected to have a material impact on the
Groop. They include:

v PFRS |. Firsi-time Adoption of PFRS - Meaning of "Effecrive PFRSs

*  PFRS 3, Business Combinations — Scope Frceptions for Jolnt Arrangemenis,
»  PFRS 13 Fair Palue Measirement — Portfolio Exception, and

*  PAS 40, frvestment Properiy.
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Effective January 1, 2016

PFRE 10, Consefidated Financigl Statements and PAS 28, fnvestments in Associates and ol
Venfures - Sale or Contmbution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Jomt Yenture
These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in PFRS
10 and those in PAS 28 (2011} in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and s associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss is
recoenized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not).
A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction invelves assets that do not constitute a
busingss, even if these assets are haused in a subsidiary. These amendments are effective from
annual periods beginning on or after Janvary 1, 2016

FFRE 11, Joint Arrangements — Accownting for Acguisitions of {nferests in Joint Operailions
(Amendments)

The amendments ta PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting far the acquisition of an
inlgrest in @ joinl operation, in which the activity of the jeint operation constitutes a businesy
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting.  The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation 15 not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is retained
In addition, a seope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do not
apply when the pantics sharng jont control, including the reporting entity, are undesr common
control of the same ultimate controlling party,

The amendments apply to baoth the acquisition of the initial interest m a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adeption permitted. These
amendments are not expected to have anv impact to the Group.

PFRS 14, Regulatory Defereal Accounts

FFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate-
repulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatery deferml
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS, Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must prosent
the regulatory deferral aceounts as separate ling items on the statement of financial position and
present movements in these account balances as separate line items in the staternent of profit ar
loss and other comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosures on the nature of, and
risks associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on irs
financial statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2016, Since the Group is an gxisting PFRS preparer, this standard would not apply.

PAS 16, Property. Plant and Faguipment, and PAS 33, Itangible Asvets — Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortizntion (Amendments)

The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather
than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-
based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and ¢quipment and may only be ussd
in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are effective
prospectively for annual perieds beginning on or after January |, 2016, with carly adoption
permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact to the Grroup given that the
Giraup has not used a revenue-based method to depreciate its non-cument assets,
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PAS 16, Property, Plant end Equipmeni, and PAS 41, Agriculture — Bearer Planis
CAmendments)

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of
bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41 Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After
mitial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before
maturity) and using cither the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity).  The
amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured ar fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer plants,
PAS 20, Accounting for Goversmment Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, will
apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments are not expected to have
any impact to the Group as the Group docs not have any bearer plants.

BAS 27, Separare Financial Statements — Eguity Method in Separate Finanoial Sialetments
{Amendments)

The amendments will allow entitics 1o use the equity method to account for investments m
subsidiarics, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial staterments. Entitics alrcady
applving PFRS and electing to change to the equity method i its separate financial statements
will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-lime adopters of PFRS electing to use
the equity methed in its separate financial statements, they will be required to apply this methed
from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption pennitted. These amendments will not have any
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Tmprovements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cvcle)

The Anmual Dmprovements o PFRSs (2002-2004 cyele) are effective Tor annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016 and are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group. They include:

v PFRS 3. Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations — Changes in
Methods af Disposal

» PERS 7, Financial fmstruments: Disclosures - Servicing Controcts

»  PFRS 7 - Applicability of the Amendments to PFRY 7 o Condensed Interim Financial
Sierterments

= PAS 1%, Emplovee Bemefits — reglonal miarket issne regarding discount rave

= PAS 34, Inierim Financial Reporting — disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim
Sfinancial report’

Effective January {, 2018

PFRS 9. Financial Instruments — Hedge Accounting and amendments to PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 39 (2013 version)

PFRS Y (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the praject to replace PAS 39 which
pertains to hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rules-based hedge accounting
model of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach. Changes include replacing the rales-
based hedge cffectiveness test with an objectives-based test that focuses on the ecenomic
relationship between the hedged rtem and the hedging instrument, and the effect of eradit risk on
that economie relationship; allowing risk components to be designated as the hedged item, not
only for financial items but also for non-financial items, provided that the nisk component is
separately identifiable and reliably measurable; and allowing the time value of an option, the
farward clement of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread to be excluded
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from the designation of a derivative instrument as the hedging mstrument and accounted for as
costs of hedging, PFRS 9 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge accounting.

PFRS 9 (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective date of
Janwary 1, 2008 was sventually set when the Gnal version of PFRS 9 was adupted by the FRSC.
The adoption of the final version of PFRS 2, however, is still for approval by BOA,

The adoption of PFRS 9 is not expected to have anv significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

»  PFRS 9, Financial Instments (2014 or final version)

In July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9, Fimancial Instruments, was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all
phases of the financial instruments project and replaces PAS 30, Fimamcial Instrnments:
Recopnition and Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requitcnaents for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting.
PFRS 9 is effective for annual peniods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early
application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but compamtive information is not
compulsary,  Early application of previous versions of PFRS 0 is permitted if the date of initial
application is before February 1, 2015, The adoption of PFRS 9 15 not expected to have any
sirnificant impact on the Group’s congolidated financial statements.

The following new standard issued by the IASB has not vet been adopted by the FRSC

* IFRS 13, Revenue from Contracts with Cusiomers
[FRS 15 was issued n May 2014 and establishes a new five-step moedel that will apply to
revenue ansing from contracts with customers. Under [FES 13 revenue is recognized at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services (o a cusiomer.

The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognizing
revenue.  The new revenue standard i1s applicable to all entitics and will supersede all current
revenue recognition.  Either a full or madified retrospective application is required for annual
periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2017 with early adoption permitted. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of TFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required
cffective date once adopted locally,

Business Combinations and Goodwill

Business combinations ars accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measurcd as the agoregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisibon date fair value
and the amount of any NCI in the acquirce. For each busingss combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the NCI in the acguiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable nel assets, Acgquisition-related costs are expensed as incureed and included in
administrative cxpenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, cconomic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree,
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Whean such an acruisition is not judged to be an acquisition of a businzss, it is not treated 25 a
busingss combination. Rather, the cost to acguire the corporate entity is allocated between the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the entity based on their relative fair values at the acquisition
date. Accordingly, no goodwill or additional defirned tax arises.

If the business combination 15 achicved 1n staaes, any previously held equity interest iz re-measured
al ity acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. Itis
then considered in the determination of goodwill.

Any contingent consideration to be transferrad by the acquirer will be recogmized ar farr value at the
acquisition date.  Contingent consideration classified as an asset or lability that 15 a financial
mstrument and within the scope of PAS 39 s measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized either in profit or loss or as a changs to QCI If the contingent consideration 15 not within
the scope of PAS 39, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate. PFRS.  Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-mcasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

" Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the cxcess of the asgrepate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognized for NCI and any previous interest held, over the net
identifiable assets acquired and labilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is o
oxcess of the agoregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether 6 has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used
to measure the amounts to be recognized at the acquisition date, [f the re-assessment still regults in
an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the agerepate consideration transferred, then
the gain is recognized in profit or loss,

After imitial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the pumpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired 10 a busincss combination is, from the
acquisition date. allecated to each of the Group’s CGUs that are expected 1o benefit from the
combination. irespective of whether other assets or labilitics of the acquires are assigned to those
umnls,

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal, Goodwill disposed in these circumstances
15 measured based en the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the CGU
retaingd.

Current versus Moncurrent Classification
The Group presents assets and liabilitics in the consolidated statement of financial position based on
current or noncurrent classification.

An assel 15 current when it is;

*  expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cyele,

*  held primarily for the purpose of trading,

= gnpeeted to bo realized within twelve months after the reporting peried, or

*  cash or cash cguivalent unless restricted from being cxchanged or used to settle & bakabty for at
least taelve months after the reporting period.
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A1l other assats are classified as noncurrent.

A liability iz current when:

* it is expected to be settled in normal operating cyele,

= i ig held primarily for the purpose of trading,

* it is dug to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. or

*  there is no unconditional night to defer the settlement of the lability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period,

The Group classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.
Diefarred income tax assers and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.

Fair Valne Measurement

The Group measures financial instuments, such as financial asscts at FVPL and AFS financial
agsets and non-financial agsers such as investment properties, at fair value at each reporting date.
Additional Bair value related disclosures including fair values of financial instruments measured at
amortized cost arc disclosed in Note 34,

Fair value is the price that would be recerved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.  The farr value
measurement is based on the prosumption that the transaction to scll the asset or transfer the
liatality takes place either;

« in the principal market For the asset or liability, or
* in the absence of a principal markst, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be aceessible to the Group.

The fair value of an assct or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or hability, assurming that market participants act m their
economic hest interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
menerate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highast and best use,

The Group uses valuation techmiques that are appropriate m the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value i1s measured or disclosed in the conselidated financial
statcments are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant o the fair value measurement as a whole:

*  Level | - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

*  Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurcment is directly or indirectly observable.

v Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that 1s significant to the fair
value measurement 15 unobservable,
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For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
hasis, the Group determings whether transfers have oceurted between levels in the hierarchy by re-
asscssing categorization (based on the lowest level mput that 15 significant to the fair value
measurement as 2 whole) at the end of cach reporting pened.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or lizbility and the level of the fair
value hierarchy ag explained above.

Cash and Cazh Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks that carm interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash
cquivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition and are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instuments

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value, adjusted for directly attributable
{ransaction costs in the case of financial instruments not at FYVPL, The Group recognizes a financial
instroment in the consolidated statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the
contraciual provisions of the instrument.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date, which is the
date that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets wathin the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace,

Classification

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVPL, loans and receivables, held to mamnity
(FITM) financial assets, and AFS financial assets as appropriate. Financial liabilities are classified as
financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities. The Group determines the classification
of its financial instruments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-cvaluates the
designation at each reporting date.  As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the group has no HTM
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL,

Financial Assets or Liabilities at FVPL
Finansial instrwments at FVPL include financial assets or liabilities held for trading and those
designated upan initial recognition as financial assets or liabilities at FVPL.

Financial assets and liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term, Derivatives, including scparated embedded derivatives, are also classified
a5 held for rrading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.  Dividends, interests and gains or losses on held for trading financial insrruments are
recogrized in the profit or loss,

Financial instruments may be designated at imitial recognition as financial assels or labilines at
FVPL when any of the following criteria are met: (i) the designation climinates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities
or recognizing the gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the assets or liabilitics are part of
a group of financial instruments which are managed and their performances are evaluated on fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management strategy: or {iil) the financial
instrument containg an embedded derivative that would need to be separately recorded.

4 4
SHANG PROPERTIES | 2014



As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has investments in shares of stock of various publicly
lisled companies which are classified as held for trading financial assets.

Loans anel Recehvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
arc not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, loans and reccivables are
subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less any
allowance for impairment, EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments
or reccipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the net carving amount of the financial asset or liability. Amortized cost is caleulated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition, and includes fees that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR ameortization is included in interest income in the profit or loss. Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are derecognized, impaired or amortized.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group’s loans and receivables consist of cash in banks, cash
erquivalents, cash in escrow, receivables (except for advances lo contractors and suppliers) and
refundable deposits.

AFE Financial Asseis

AFS financial assets include equity investments. Equity investments classified as AFS arc those that
are neither classified as held for trading nor designated as at FVPL. Financial assets may be
designated at initial recognition as AFS financial assets if they are purchased and held indefinitely,
and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.

AFS financial assets are carried at fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Changes in fair value of such assets are accounted for in OCI in the cumulative changes in fair value
of AFS financial assets until the financial assets are derecognized or until they are determined to be
impaired.  When an AFS financial asset is derecognized or determined to be mpaired, the
cumulative gains or losses proviously recorded in OCI are recognized in profit or loss.

[nvestments in equity investments that do not have quoted market prices in an active market and
whose fair values eannot he reliably measured are carmied at their cost, less any impairment in value.

Az of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group's investment in proprictary club shares and listed and
unlisted shares of stock are classified as AFS financial assets.

Chirer Finoscial Liatilives
This category pertaing to financial liabilities that are not held for trading nor designated as financial
liabilities at FYPL upon inception of the liability.

Other financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value, Jess directly atributable transaction
costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are carried at amertized cost using the EIR
method,  Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any issue costs, and any discount or
premium on settlement.  Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilitics arc
derccognized or amaortized.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group®s other financial liabilities include accounts pavable
and other current liabilities (except for customers’ deposits, reservation pajyables. oulpul WAT,
deferred output VAT and withholding taxes), bank loans, deposits from tenants and accrued
emploves benefils (excluding defined benefit liability).
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Financial Cuaraniee

Financial puaraoiees are not recoznized in the consolidated financial statements until an obligation 1o
pav the liability of anather party to e arcangement is cstablished. Such lability is classificd as
other financial lability. 1t is only disclosed as part of liquidity risk of the Group.

Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of financial instruments that arc actively traded in organized financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business on the reporting date.
Far investments and all other financial instroments where there is no active market, fair value 15
determined wusing valuation technigues.  Such techniques include using arm’s-length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another instrument, whick is substantially the
same; and discownted ¢cash flow (DCE) analysis and other valuation models. If the fair value cannot
be measured reliably, the financial instruments are measured at cost, being the fair value of the
consideration paid, in case of an asset, and recelved. in case of a liability. All transaction costs
direetly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of investment,

Dy  Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
chservable current market transactions in the same mstrument or based on a valuation technigque
whose variables include only data from obscrvable market, the Group recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a Day | difforence) in the profit or loss unless it
qualifies fior recognition as some other type of asset.  In cases where the data vsed are nol
observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized i the
profit ar loss swhen the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Group determines the appropriate method of recogmizing the Day 1 difference.

Ofvering

A finzneial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial positien if, and only if, there is a currently enforeeable lagal right to offset the
recoemzed amounts, and there is an infention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assct and settle
the liability simultanecusty. This is not generally the case with master netting agreement, and the
related asscts and Habilitics are presented gross in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of Firancial Asses

The Group assesses, at cach reporting date, whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impamed.  An lnpaimment exists if one or more ¢vents that has
accurted since the ininial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’). has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated,  Evidence of impairment mav include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors 15
experiencing significant {inancial difficuity, default or delinguency.in interest or principal payvments,
the probability that they will enter bankmptey or other financial reorganization and cbservable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows. such as changes in
arrcars or coonomic conditions that correlate with defaalts,
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(1.

Finemeial Assets Carried at Amaortized Cost

For financial assets carried at amaortized cost, the Group first assesses whether impairment exists
indivicually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assels that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objeetive evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asser, whether significant or not. it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit nisk charactensties and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment
and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recogpized are not included n a
collective assessment of impaiment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified 13 measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrving amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (cxcluding future expected
credit losses that have not vet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flowes is discounted at the financial asset’s original ETR,

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss
is recognized in the profit or loss. Interest income (recorded as finance income in the profit or
loss) continues to be accrued on the reduced carrving amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used 1o discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans togcther with the associated allowance are written off when there 15 no realistic prospect
of future recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Group. [f, in
a subsequent vear, the amount of the estmated impaiment loss increases or decreases bocause
of an event cccurring after the Impairment was recognized, the previeusly recognized
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery 1s credited to finance costs in the profit or loss.

AES Financial Assets
For AFS financial assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective
evidence that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below s cost. “Significant’
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and ‘prelonged” against the period in
which the fair value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of impaiment, the
cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or loss, is
removed from OC1 and recognized in the profit or loss.  Impairment losses on equity
imvestments are not reversed through profit or loss; increases in their fair value after impairmeant
are recognized in OCL

Financial Assets Carried at Cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carricd at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or
on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asser's carrving
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset,
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Derecognition

i Fimemcial dsyets
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
fnancial assels) 15 pomanly demcognized (e removed from the Group’s consolidated
staternent of Anancial position) when;

*  The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

*  The Group has transferred its eights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
chligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay te a third party under
a ‘pass-through” arrengement; and cither {a) the Group has transfirred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transforred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the assct.

When the Group has transferred its rights to reccive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially atl of the risks
and rowards of the asset, nor transforred comtrol of the assct, the Group continues to roccognize
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing mvalvement. In that case, the Group
also recognizes an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated lability are
measured oo o bagis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

h.  Financial Liakilifies
A financial Halility is derccognized when the obligation under the liability 15 discharged or
cancelied, or expires. When an existing financial liability 15 replaced by ancther from the same
lender on substantially different torms, or the terms of an existing liability arc substangally
madified, such an exchange or modificanon is treated as a derccogniuon of an eriginal labiliey
and a recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carryving amounts 15
recognized in the profit or loss,

Propertics Held for Sale

Properties held for sale are properties being constructed or acquired for sale in the ardinary course of
busingss, rather than for rental or capital appreciation, and are carried at the lower of ¢ost and net
realizable value (NRV)., NEV 15 the estimated selling price m the ordinary course of the business,
based aon market prices at the wporting date, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
to =ell.

Condominium Units Held for Sale

Caost of condeminium units beld for sale represent accumulated costs of the unsold units of the
completed Projects. Cost includes those dirgetly attributable to the construction of the Projeets such
as ¢ost of land, direct matenials, borrowing costs, professional and consultancy fecs, and project
management costs, which arg allocated to the unsold wnits,

Construction in Progress

Cost of construction in progress represents the accumulated costs for the construction and
development of the ongoing Projects. It includes those thar are directly awributable 1o the
construction of the Projects such as cost of land, direct materials, borrowimng costs, professional and
consultancy fees, and project management costs,
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Prepayments and Other Cyrrent Assets

Prepaid Commission end Expenses

Prepaid commission and expenses include expenditures already paid but not vel incurred and from
which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the Group within the normal operating evele.
These are measured at cost less allowance for impairment losses, if any.

Creditable Withholding Tox (CWT)
CWT represents faxes withheld for goods and services provided. CWTs can be claimed as credit
against meome tay due.,

Investments in Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but 15 not control
or joint contrel aver those policies.

The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary (o
determine control over subsidiaries, and are generally accompanying a sharehalding between 20% to
0% of the voting rights,

An investment in associate is accounted for using the cquity method from the date when it becomes
an associate, On acquisition of the investment, any difference between the cost of the investment
and the investor's share in the net fair value of the associate’s idennfiable assels, liabilitics and
contingent liabilities is accounted for as follows:

a  Goodwill relating to an associate is included m the camying amount of the investment.
However, amortization of that goodwill is not permitted and is therefore not included in the
deternvination of the Group’s share 0 the associate’s profits or losses.

b. Any excess of the Group’s share in the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable asscts,
liabilities and contingent labilities over the cost of the investment is excluded from the carrying
amount of the investment and is instead included as income in the determination of the
Company’s sharc in the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
aceuired.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is mitially recognized at cost. The carrying
amount of the mvestment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Group's share of net assets of the
associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in
the carrving amount of the investment and is neither amortized nor individually tested for
Impairent,

The profit or loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations of the associate. Any chango
in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCIL In addition, when there has been a
change recognized directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognizes its share of any
changes, when applicable, i the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gams and
lasses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are ghiminated to the extent of
the mterest in the associate.

The aggregate of the Group’s share in net profit or loss of an associate is reponted in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax
and NCI in the subsidiaries of the associate.
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The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group,
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in ling with those of the
Group,

After application of the equity methad, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate. At cach reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. 1f there is such
evidence, the Group caleulates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrving value, then recognizes the loss as “Share in net profit {loss)
of an associate” in the profit or loss.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from the date when 1t ceases to have significant
influenee over an associate and accounts for the investment in accordance with PAS 39 from that
date, provided the associate does not become a subsidiary or a joint armngement as defined in
PFRS 11. Upon loss of significant influcnee over the associate, the Group measures and recognizes
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the camying amount of the
associate upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
procecds from disposal is recognized in the profit or loss,

Investment Propertics
Investment properties consist of Jand and buildings that are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not owner-oceupied by the companies in the Group.

[nvestment propertics are measured initially at their costs, including related transacnon costs. The
cost of a purchased investment property comprises of its purchase price and any directly atmbutable
cosls. Transaction costs include transfer taxes, professional fees and other costs necessary to bring
the investment properties to the condition necessary for them to be capable of being used

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value. Gains or losses ansing from
changes in fair value are recorded in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, Jocation or condition
of the specific asset.

The Group ohtains an updated appraisal report when management believes there are significant
changes m the fair values of the investment propertics. The fair values of investroent propertics are
derermimed by independent valuers, The fair value of each of the Group’s investment property is
derermined whenever there are significant changes in the assumptions used in determining the fair
valug, An investment property that is boing redeveloped for continuing use as investment proporty,
ar for which the market has become less active, continues to be measured at fair value.

A subsequent expenditure 1s charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that
fiture economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be reliably measured. Repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss in the penod in
which they are incurred,
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Irevestment propertics are derecognized when they are disposed of or permanently withdrawn from
use and no future cconomic benefit is expected from their disposal. Aoy gain or loss on the
retirernent or disposal of an investment property is recogized in the profit or loss. Gain or loss on
disposal of mvestioent property is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset at the date of disposal.

Transfers are made to investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease to another
party. Transfers are made from investment properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a
view 1o sell

When the Group completes the construction or development of a selfconstructed imvestment
prisperty that will be carried at fair value, any difference between the fair value of the property at that
datc and its provious carrying amount shall be recognized in profit or loss. If a land or building and
butlding improvement classified as “Property and equipment” becomes an mvestment property, the
Greup accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property and equipment
up to the date of change in use. For transfer from investment property carried at fair value to
praperly and cquipment or construction in progress, the investment property’s deemed cost shall be
its fair value at the date of change in use.

Real Estate Development Projects

The real estate development projects are undertaken by the subsidiaries and arc carried at cost less
any impairment in value,  Cost primarily consists of acquisition cost of the property being
constructed, air rights, expenditures for the development and construction of the real cstale project
and borrowing costs mcurred, if amy, in the acquisition of qualifying assets during the
construction period and up to the date of completion of construction.

Upon completion, the accumulated costs are reclassificd 1o investment property ar properties held
for sale depending on the futurs use of the property at the then camrying amount.

Broperty and Equipment
Property and equipment is stated ar cost. net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, and
accumulated impairment lossss, if any.

The initial costs of property and equipment consist of their purchase prices and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition and lecation for their intended use.
Expenditures incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operation, such as repair
and maintenance costs, are recognized in profit or loss in the year in which the costs are incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in
furure ceonomic benefits expected to be obtained from the usc of an item of property and cquipment
bevond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as additional
costs of properly and squipment,

Depreciation and amorlization commence once the assets are available for use and are provided on
all property and equipment at rates caleulated to write off the costs, less estimated residual values
based on prices prevailing at the reporting date, of each assct evenly over its expected uscful hife as
Fil Towes:
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Catcgary Usetul Lives in Years

Building improvements 25
Transportation equipment 2103
Furnuture, fixtures and other equipment 2104

Depreciation or amortization ceases at the carlier of the date when the asset is classified as enher
mvgstment property or property held for sale and the date the asset 1s derccognized.

The assets” estimated useful hves (EUL), and depreciation and amortization method are rovicwed
pericdically to ensure that these are consistent with the ¢xpected pattern of cconomic benefits from
the items of property and equipment. The assets’ estimated residual values are reviewed periodically
and adjusted if appropriate.

Fully depreciated and amortized property and equipment are retained in the accounts until they are
ner longer in use, and na further depreciation and amortization are charged ta profit or logs.

An item of property and equipment 15 derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any pain or loss arising from derecognition of the
asset {caleulated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the
asset) is included in the profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets

The Groug assesses at each reporling date whether there is an indication that the nonfinancial assets
congisting of investments in asscciates, real cstate development projects, property and cquipment
and goadwill may be impaired. [f any such imdication cxists, or whon annual impairment testing for
an assct is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.  An asset’s
recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset’s or CGUs fair value less cost to sell and its value in
use and 15 determined for an individual asset, unless the asset doss not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent af those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrving amount of an
asset exceeds ite recoverable amount, the asset 15 considered impaired and is weitten down to its
recoverable amount.  In assessing value m use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Impairment Tosses, if amy, are recognized in profit
ar loss in those expense eategories consislent with the funchion of the impaired assets.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there 13 any indication that the previously
recogmzed impainuent losscs may no longer exist or may have deercased. I such mdication exsts,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the assct’s or CGU's recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carmying amount of the asset or
CGU is increased te its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannat excesd the carrving
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, had no impainment
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognized in profit or logs. After
such a reversal, the depreciation or amortization charge is adjusted n Boture periods 1o allocate the
asset’s revised carrying amount, less any residoal value, on a systematic basis over its remaining
useful life.
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The following criteria are also applied in asscssing impairment of specific assets,

Drvestmends in Associates

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether 1L 15 necessary [0 recognize
inpairment loss on the Group’s investments in associates, The Group determines at each reporting
date whether there 15 objective evidence that an investment is impaired. If that 15 the case, the Group
calenlates the ameunt of impairment as the difference between the fair value of the investes
company and the carmrving value of the mvestment. The difference is recognized in profit or loss.

{roodwill

Impairment testing for goodwill 15 performed annually and when circumstances indicate that s
carryving value may be impaired. Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the goodwill relates, Whers the recoverable amount of the
CGU or group of CGUs o which goodwill has been allecated is less than its carrying amount. an
impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss. Impairment losses relating te goodwill cannot be
reversed in future periods,

Borrowing Costs

Borrowmg costs directly atmibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Customers” Deposits

Customers’ deoposits mainly represent reservation fees and advance payments. Thess deposits will
be recognized as revenue in the conselidated statement. of income as the related obligations o the
real estate buyers are fulfilled.

Deposits from Tenants
Dieposits from tenants are carried at the present value of fiture cash flows using appropriate discount
rakes.

The difference between the present value and the actal deposit received 15 treated as additional
rental incentive which is recorded under “Deferred lease income™ in the statement of financial
pasition and arc recognized as remtal income using the strught-hne method over the tomm of the
lcase,

Befundable Deposits
Refindable deposits represent cash received from customers for rent and volities which are expected
to be returned after a specified period of time, or when certain conditions are satisfied.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result
of a past event; it is probable that an outflow of respurces embodyving ceonomic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate ¢an be made of the amount of the obliganon.
If the effect of the time value of money is matenal, provision is determined by discounting the
expocted future cash flows at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market asscssments of the
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense. When the
Group expects a provision ar lass to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a scparate
asset only when the reimbursement is virtually certain and its amount is estimable. The expense
relating to anv provision is presented in profit or loss, net of any reimbursement.
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Equily

Capited Stock and APIC

Capital stock 15 measured at par value for all shares issoed.  When the shares are sold at a
premium, the differcnce between the proceeds and the par value 13 credited to the "APICT aceount.
When shares arc issued for a consideration other than cash, the proceeds are measured at the fair
value of consideration received. In case the shares are issued to extinpuizsh or settle a liability of
the Parent Company, the shares are measured cither at the fair value of the shares issued or fair
valng af the lability settled, whichever is more reliably determinable.

Treqsury Shares

Ohwn equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recogrized at cost and deducted
from equity. Mo gain or loss is rceognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale. issue or
cancellation of the Group™s own equity instruments.  Any difference between the carrying ameunt
and the consideration, if reissued, is also recognized in the APIC. When the shares are retired, the
capital stock account is reduced by its par value and the excess of cost over par value, upon
refircment, 15 charged to APIC when the shares are issued.

Giher Comporents of Equity

These are recorded for items that are directly recognized in equity, which include cumulative
changes in fair value of AFS financial assets, cumulative translation adjustments and remeasurcment
gains {losses) on defined benefit lability. They ars measured either at gross amount or net of tax
effect depending on the tax laws and regulations that apply.

Orther components of equity are derecognized when the related asset or liability where they anse are
derecognized,

Retained Earnings

Betained eamings include cumulative profits attributable to the Parent Company’s stockholders, and
reduced by dividends, Retained eamings also include effect of changes in accounting policies as
may be required by the standards’ transitional provisions. '

Diviglend Distribution

The Company recopnizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders of the Parent
Company when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the
Group. As per the corporate laws in the Philippines, a distribution is authonzed when it is declared
b the Board. A comesponding amount is recognized directly in equity,

Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue 15 recognized to the extent that it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow to the
Growp and the amount of revenue and expense can be reliably measured. regardless of when the
collection or payment is made. Revenue 1z measured at the fair value of consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of pavment and excluding taxes and
duries.

The Group assesses Its revenue arrangsments against specific criteria in order to determine if it is
acting as a principal or as an agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as the principal in all
of its major revenue arrangements since it is the primary abligor in all the revenue arrangements, has
pricing latitode and is also exposed 1o properies held for sale and credit nsks.

The following specific recogmition criteria must also be met before revenue and expenses are
recognized;
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Comdominium Sales

The Group asscsses whether it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow to the Croup when
the contract price is collectible. Collectability of the contract price is demonstrated b the buver’s
commitment to pay. which is supported by the buyer’s initial and continuous mvestments that
motivates the buver to honor its obligation. Collectability is also assessed by considering factors
such as collections and credit standing of the buyer.

Revenue from condominium sales is accounted for using the full accrual method. In accordance
with Philippine Interpretations Committes Q&A No. 2006-01, the percentage of completion (PCC)
method is used to recognize income from condominium sales where the Group has material
ohligations under the sales contract to complete the real estate project after the unit is sold, the
equitable interest has been transferred to the buyer, construction is bevond preliminary stags (Le.,
cngingering, design work, construction cantracts execution, site clearance and preparation,
excavation and the building foundation are finished), and the costs incurred or to be incurred can be
measured reliably, Under this method, revenue is recognized as the related obligations are fulfilled,
measured principally on the basis of the estimated completion of a physical proportion of the
contract work.

Any excess of collections over the recognized revenue are included in the “Customers’ deposits™
aceount in the consolidated statement of financial position, If the revenue recognition criteria under
the full acerual or POC method are not met, the deposit method is applicd until all the conditions for
recosmizing a sale are met. Until revenue from condominium sales 15 recognized, cash received
from customers are recognized also as part of “Customers” deposits.”™

(st of real cstate sales is recognized consistent with the revenue recognition method applicd. Cost
of eondominium units sold hefore the completion of the development is determined on the hasis of
the acquisition cost of the land plus its full development costs, which include estimared costs fior
furure develppment works,

The eost of condominium sales recognized in profit or loss on their dispesal is determined with
reference to the specific cost incurred on the property, alloeated to saleable area based on relative
size and takes into account the POC used for revenue recognition purposes.

Gstimated loss on unsold units is recognized in profit or loss immediately when it is probable that
total project costs will excesd total contract revenue.

Rental

Renral revenues from the leasing of properties held under operating lease are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the periods of the respective leases or on g certain percentage of gross
revenue of the lessees, whichever 13 appropriate,

frterest fnoame

Interest income is Tecognized as it accrues, taking into account the effective wvield on the asser
Interest income from aceretion of installment conteacts receivable is recognized using the EIR
method,

Dividend Income
Revenue is recognized when the Group's right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when the Board of the investee company approved the dividend.
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(hher Service Income

Admimistration and management services, customer lounge fees, banner income, income from
cincma operations and other service income are recognized when the related services have boen
rendered.  Revenues from auxiliary services such as handling, sale of scrap materials, import break
bulk and brokerage are recognized when serviees are provided or when goods are delivered. Money
received or amounts billed in advance for rendering of services or delivery of goods are recorded as
uncarmed income until the carning process is complete.

Commission fpense

Commissions paid to sales and marketing agents on the sale of pre-completed units are deferred
when recoveries are reasonably expected and are ¢harged to expense in the peried in which the
refated revenues are recognized as eamed.  Accordingly, when the POC method 15 used,
commissions are likewise charged o expense in the pericd the related revenues are recognized.

Creneral and Adminisiraive Ixpenses
General and administrative expenses are recognized as incurred.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the amangement 1s dependent
on the use of a specific assct or assets and the armngement conveys a right to usc the asset.
A reassessment is made after inception of the lease onlv if one of the fellowing applics:

a. there s a change in contractual tenms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b a rencwal option is excrcised or cxtension is granted, unless that term of the rencwal or
extension was initially included in the leasc term:

¢, there is a change in the determipation of whether fulfillment 15 dependent on a specified asset; or

d.  there is a substantial change to the asset.

When a reasscssment 1= made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances give rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), () or (d) above, and at the
date of rencwal or cxtension period for scenario (b).

Crromp as the Lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the assets are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating
lcase are added to the camrving amount of the rental receivables or customers’ deposits and
recognized over the lcase term on the same basis as rental ingome. Contingent rents are recognized
as revenue in the period in which they are carned,

Emploves Benefits

Retirement Benefits

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of defined benefit
obligation at the cnd of the reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan asscts (ifany), adjusted
for any cffect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling,

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is actwarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.
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Defined henefit costs comprise the following:

= zenvce cost,
= petinterest on the net defined benefit Liability or asset, and
v remeasurements of net defined benefit liability or asset,

Service costs which include current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-
routing settlements are recognized as expense in profit or loss, Past service costs are recognized
when plan amendment or curlailment occurs.  These amounts are caleulated periodically by
independent qualified actuanics.

Met igterest on the net defined benefit Hability or asset is the chanpe during the period in the net
defined benefit liability or asset that arises from the passage of time which is determined by applying
the discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit hability or asset. Met interest
on the net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expenss or income in profit or loss.

Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, returm on plan assets and any change in the
cffeet of the asset ceiling (excluding net intorest on defined benchit liability) are recognized
immediately in OCT in the period in which they arise. Remeasurements are not reclassifisd to profit
or loss in subseguent periods.

Flan assets are assets that are held by a long-term emplovee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
palicies. Plan assets are not available to the ereditors of the Group, nor can they be paid directly 1o
the Group, Fair value of plan assets 15 based on market price information.  When no market price is
available, the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future eash flews using a
pre-tax discount rate that refleets both the risk associated with the plan asscts and the maturity or
cxpeeted disposal date of those asscts {on, if they have no maturity, the expected period untl the
settlement of the related obligations). If the fair value of plan assets is higher than the present value
of defined benefit abligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the
present value of economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
fiature contmibutions to the plan.

The Group’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditures required to settle a defined
benefit obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement
15 virtually certam,

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits provided in exchange for the termination of an
emplovee’s employment as a result of either an entity’s decision to terminate an employee's
employment before the normal retirement date or an emploves’s decision to accept an offer of
benefits in exchange for the termunation of empleyment,

A liability and an expense for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of the benefit and when the entity recognizes related restructuring
costs. [nitial recognition and subsequent changes to termination benefit are measured in accordance
with the nature of the emplovee henefit, as either post-employment benefit. short-term employee
benefit, or other long-tenm emploves benefit, Benefits falling due more than twelve months from the
reporting date are discounted to their present values.
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Employee Leave Enfitlement

Emplavee entitlements to annual leave are recognized as a liability when they are acerucd 10 the
emplovees. The undiscounted liability for leave expecied to be settled whally before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period 15 recognized for services rendered by emplovess up to
the ond of the reporting period.  The liability for leave expected to be scttled moere than twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting pericd are discounted to s present value.

Foreign Currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Peso, which 15 also the Parent

Company’s functional currency. For sach entity, the Group determines their functional currency and

items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency,
he Group uses the direct method of consclidation and has elected to recvele the gains or losses that

arise from using this method.

Trawnsacrions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entitics al their respective
functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
curreney spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation
af monctary items arc recagnized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
nsing the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions, Non-monetary items measured at fair
valug in a foreign currency are lranslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined, The gain or loss arising on translation of non-menetary items measured at fair value is
treated i bine with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item {i.e., translation
differcnces on items whose fair value gain or loss 18 recognized in OCT or profit or loss are also
recognized in OCT or profit or loss, respectively).

Crronep Componies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of Gipsey and SHIL, foreign subsidiarics with functional
and presentation currency of Hong Kong Dollar (HKS), are tmnslated into Peso at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income statements are translated at exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arismg on translation for
consolidation are recognized in OCL On disposal of a foreign subsidiary, the component of OCI
refating to that particular foreign subsidiary is recognized in profit or loss.

[ncome Tax

Curvent Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
cxpeeted to be recovered from ar paid to the taxation authoritics. The tax rates and tax laws wsed to
compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

In the sale of condominium units resulting to recognition of installment contracts receivabls, full
recognition for income tax purposes is applied when more than 23% of the selling price has besn
collected in the vear of sale, Otherwise, the installment method is applied.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assers and Liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred 1ax
ligbilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

v where the deferred tax lability arises from the initial recognition of poodwill or of an asset or
lability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction.
affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss; and

* o respect of taxable temporary differences asscciated with investments in subsidiancs and
associates and interest in joint armangements, whers the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
thi foreseeable future.

Defarred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of
xcess mimmum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and net
operating loss carrvover (NOLCO), to the extent that it iz probable that taxable income will be
available apainst which the deductible temporary differences, and the camyforward benefits of
excess MOIT ever RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized cxcept:

»  where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temperary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or lability in a transaction that 1s not a business combination and. at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting ingome nor taxable profit or loss; and

*  in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
tacable income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable neome will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at cach
balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax assets o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1o the year
when the asset is realized or the Lability is settled, based on tax mtes (and tax Jaws) that have been
enacted or substantivelv enacted at the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the consolidated statement of income is recognized
outside the consolidated statement of income. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the
underlving transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offser, if a legallv enforceable night exists to offset
CITENt fax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the sume tax authority, Subsitiaries operating in the Philippines file income tax refurn on an
individual basis. Thus, the deferred tax assets and deferred tax Labilities are offset on an per entily
basis.
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VAT
Revenne, expenses, assets and habilities are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except:

¢ whers the VAT incurred om a purchase of assets or services 15 not recoverable from the tax
authority, in which case the VAT is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the cxpense ttem as applicable; and

= receivables and pavables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the tax autherity is included as part of
“Propayments and other corrent assets™ or “Accounts pavable and other current liabalitics™ accounts,
respectively, in the consolidated statements of financial position.

Eamings Per Sharo

Earnings per share is computed by dividing the net income attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company for the vear by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year
adjusted ta give retroactive effeet to any stock dividends declared during the year.

Basic carnings per share 15 calenlated by dividing the net income attributable to cquity holders of the
Parent Company for the year by the weighted average number of common sharss outstanding during
the wear, ;

Diluled carnings per share 15 computed by dividing the adjusted net income attributable o equity
holders of the Parent Company for the vear by the weighted average number of shares taking into
account the effects of all potential dilutive common shares.

Seement Reporting

For manapement purposes, the Group is organized and managed separately according to the nature
of the busingss. These operting businesses are the basis upon which the Group reports its segment
information presented in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,

An aperating scoment is o component of an enfity:

a. that enpages in business activities from which it may carn revemies and imour cxpenses
fincluding  revenues and cxpenses relating to transactions with other components of the same
entityy;

L. with operating results regularly reviewed by the entity’s chicf operating decision maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance; and

c. for which discrete financial information is available,

Contingencics

Contingent liabilities ars not recognized in the consolidated financial statements, They are disclosed
n the nates to the consalidated finaneial statements unless the possibility of an cutflow of resources
embaodving ecanomic beoefits is remote. Contingent assels are not recognized in the consalidaled
financial statements but are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefirs is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date

Anv post vear-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s financial position
at the reparting date (adjnsting event) is reflected in the consolidated fimancial statements. Post
vear-end cvents that are nol adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when matenal (o the
consohidated financial statements,
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Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements based on evalvation of relevant facts and circumstances at the
reporting date. Future events may occur which can cause the assumptions used in arriving at those
judzments and cstimates to change. The effucts of any changes will be reflected in the consolidated
financial statements as they become reasanably determinable.

Judaments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has madse the following
Judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on
armounts recognized m the consalidated financial statcments:

Praperiy Acqguisition and Business Combination

The Group acquires real estate properties. At the time of acquisition, the Group considers whether
the acquisition represents an acquisition of a business or a group of assets and liabilities. The Group
accounts for an acquisition as a business combination if it acquires an integrated sct of business
processes in addition to the real estate properly.  The consideration is made 1o the extent that the
significant busingss processes are acquired and the additional services to be provided by the
subsidiary.

When the acquisition of subsidiary does not constitute a business, it is accounted for as an
acguisition of a group of assets and liabilities, The purchase price of the acquisition is allocated to
the asscts and liabilities acquired bascd upon their relative fair values at the date of acquisition, no
goodwill or deferred tax is recognized.

m 2014, the Group accounted for the acquisition of the 20% equity interest of Alphaland
Development, Inc. (Alphaland) in SGCPT and FESHI as a business combination achieved in stages
(see Mote 12,

Assessing Significant Influence over Associales

Significant influgnce is presumed when there is 2 holding of 20% or more of the voting power of the
investee (held directly or indireetly, through subsidiaries). Management assessed that the Group has
significant mfluence aver all its associates by virtue of the Group’s holding more than 20% voting
power in the mvestes, representation on the board of directors, and participation in policy-making
processes of the associares.

Distinction between Properties Held For Sale, Investment Praperties and Property and Eguipment
The Group determines whether a property is to be classified as a property held for sale or an
investment property through the following:

*  Propertics held for sale comprise properties that are held for sale in the ordinary course of
business. These are condominium units that the Group developed or is developing and intends
to sell

®  Investment properties comprise land and buildings which are not occupied, substantially for use
by, cr in the operaticns of, nor for sale in the erdinary course of business of the Group, but are
held primarily to carn rental income or capital appreciation,
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The Group determunes whether a property qualifies as an investment property or an item of propey
and cquipment. In making its judgment, the Group considers whether the properly generates cash
flows larzely independent of the other assets held by the Group. Property and cquipment generate
cash flows that are attributable not only to them but also to the other assels used in the operations of
the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is to eam rentals or for capital appreciation and another
porticn that is held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes,  If these portions cannot
be sold separately at the reporting date, the property is accounted for as an mvestment property only
if an nsignificant portion is held for use in the operation or for administrative purposes. Judgment is
applied in determining whether ancillary serviees are so significant that o property does not qualify
as an investment property. The Group considers each property separately in making its judgment

The carrving values of properties held for sale, investment properties, and property and equipment as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to BS 773 117,604, B27 110,867 483, B&7 009 417 and
#7 443 509,795, R26, 743,225,950, a7 (195,620, respectively (see Notes &, 13 and 16).

Valuation of hvestment Properties

The Group's financial controller and the managers of cach property determine the policies and
procedures for the fair valie measurement of the investment propertics. External valuers are
involved in the valuation of investment properties as decided annually by the Group, The selection
criterta for the external valuers include market knmowledge, reputation, ndependence and whether
prafissional standards are maintaingd,

At each teporting date, the Group analyzes the movements in the values of mvestment properties
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Group verifies the major mputs by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

Bascd on the analysis performed by management, the Group has concluded that the fair valug
adjustment in 2014 and 2013 i insignificant (see Mote 13),

Classification of Leases ary Operating Lease

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio where it
has determined that it retains the significant risks and rewards related to the gwnership of the sad
investment properics.

The carrving values of investment properties as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to
P27.110.867 488 and B26,743 225 950, respectively (see Note 13).

Impeiement of AFS Eguity Finaneial Assets

The Group treats AFS equity financial assets as impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decling in the fair value below its cost or whether other abjective evidence of impairment
gnists. The determination of what is “significant” and “prolonged”™ requires judgment. The Group
gengrally treats a decline of 20% or more of the original cost as “sigmificant” and a period greater
than six months as “prolonged”. In addition, the Group evalvates other factors including normal
volatility in share prices for quoted securities, future cash flows and discount factors for unguoted
securitiss,
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The carrving values of AFS cquity financial assets amounted o P502,822.842 and B502,322 8472 a5
af Decomber 31, 2014 and 2013, respectivelv (see Note 13), Based on management’s assessment.
there has been no significant or prolonged decline o the fair value of AFS equity financial asss,
thus, no impairment loss was recognized in 2014, 2013 and 201 2.

Determination of the Functional Currency

Bazed on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Paremt Company,
management determined its functional currency to be the Peso. Tt is the currency that mainly
influences the revencs, and costs and expenses of the Group.

{assification of Financial Instriments

The Group classifics a financial instrument, or its component, on intial recognition as a financial
asset, a finaneial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangement and the defimtions of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrament. The
substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its clagsification m the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial asscts are classified as financial assets at FVPL. loans and reecivables, HTM financial
aszets, and AFS financial asscts. Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are classificd as finanoal
liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities. The Group determines the classification ar initial
reopnition and recvaluates the classification at every reporting date,

Revenue Recognition

Selecting an appropriate revenue recoghition method for a particular real estate sale transaction
requires certain judgments based on the buyer's commitment on the sale which may be ascertained
through the significance of the buver’s mitial investment and completion of development, The
buver’'s committmant is evaluated based on collections, credit standing and location of the property.
Completion of development is determined based on engineer’s judgments and estimates on the
physical portion of eontract work dong and the completion of development beyond the preliminasy
stage.

Condominium sales recognized amounted to #3764 277 893, P3.935, 170,304 and £2,698,045 454
in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively,

Confingencies

The Group is cwrently invelved in various legal proceedings. The estimates of the probable costs
for the resolution of these claims have been developed in consnltation with the outside legal counsel
handling the defense in these matters and are based upon analyses of potential reports. Based on
management’s assessment, these proceedings will not have a material effect on the Group’s financial
position and performance (see Note 32}

Estimates and Assumptions

The kev assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of cstimation uncertainty at the
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments (o the carrying amounts of
assels and labilities are as follows:

Purchase Price Allocotion in Business Combination.

The acquisition method requires extensive use of accounting estimates and judgments to allocate the
purchase price to the fair market values of the acquiree’s identifiable asscts and liabilitics at
acquisition date. It also requires the acquirer to recognize goodwill. The Group’s acquisition during
the vear has resulted in goodwill.
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On April 30, 2014, the Group acquired the 20% equity interest of Alphaland in SGCPI and FBSHL
The Group recognized goodwill from the business combination amounting to B269.870.864
[gee Mofes 12 and 7).

Valwarion of Finagncial Instruments

Financial instruments carried at fair values require the use of accounting estimates.  While
significant components of fair value measurement are determined using verifiable objective
evidence, it would differ if the Group utilizes a different valuation methodology. Any changes in the
fair values of financial instruments will affect profit or loss and eouity.

The fair values of financial instruments on initial recognition arc normally the transaction prices.
These prices are indicative of actual and regularly oceurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis.

The fair values of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL and AFS financial asscts traded in active
markets are based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market prices used for
financial assets held for trading are the cument bid prices. The Group’s installment contracts
receivable’s and deposits from tenants” fair values are based on the present values of estimared
future cash flows discounted using prevailing pre-tax discount rates at the reporting date, The fair
values of the other financial instruments are estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market intercst rates that are available to the Group at the reporting date for
similar financial instruments. The fair value measurement bierarchy of the Group’s financial
instrurnents is disclosed n Note 34,

Estimation of Allowance for Impaivment of Recetvables

The Group maintains an allowanee for impairment of receivables at a level considered adequate to
provide for potentially uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by
management on the basis of the factors that affeet the collectibility of the accounts. These factors
include, but are not limited to, the length of the Group’s relationship with the customer, the
customer’s pavment behavior and known market factors. The Group reviews the age and status of
receivables. and identifies accounts that are to be provided with allowance on a continucus basis.

Bad debts recognized in 2014, 2013 and 2012 amounted to BOR2.362, wml  and
211426470, respectively (see Note 23). Allowance for impairment of reccivables amounted o
B3 056,439 and B7,074.077 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The carrying valucs of
the Group's receivables amounted to 4,162,249 384 and $3.334.271,525 as of December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively (see Note 7).

Fstimation af POC of the Profects

The Group's revenue and cost recognition policies require management to make use of estimates and
assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of revenue and costs. The Group’s revenue from
condominium sales, recognized based on the POC, arc measured principally on the basis of 1he
actual costs incurred to date over the total estimated project costs and by reference to the esumated
completion of a physical proportion of the contract work, The total project costs are cstunated by
the Group’s technical staff and are independently reviewed by the Group’s third party consultants.
Al cach reporting date, these estimates are reviewed and revised to reflect the current conditions,
when necessary.
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Q5P is 88.00% and 72.12% complete as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 55F is
12.00% and 12.81% complete as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, The Riseis 1.88%
complote as of December 31, 2014,

fossimarion of NRV

Properties held for sale are carned at the lower of cost and NRV. NRV for completed condominium
units is the estimated selling price of condominium unit less estimated costs necessary to make the
sale. NEV in respect of condomuminm units under construction is the estimated selling price of a
condominium unit less estimated costs to complete the construction, less estimated time value of
noney to the date of completion and less estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Az of December 31, 2014 and 2013, propertics held for sale amounted to B3 773, 117,694 and
B2 443 509 705, respectively (see Note ),

Determination of Fair Valves of Tnvesiment Praperties

The fair values of investment properties are determined by independent real estate valuation exparts
using recognized valuation techniques. The fair value of the Group’s land is determined using the
marker comparizson methed. Under the market comparizson method {or market comparison
approach), a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable tansactions, The market
comparison approach is based upon the principle of substiation under which a patential buyer will
not pay mors for the property than it wall cost to buy a comparable substitute property. [n theory, the
best comparable sale would be an exact duplicate of the subject property and would indicate, by the
known sclling price of the dupheate, the price for which the subjeet propenty could be sold. The unit
of compariscn apphed by the Group is the price per square meter (sqm). The markel comparison
approach is oflen used in combination with either BCF or the income capitalization method as mary
inpuis to these methods are based on market comparison. In some cases, fair values are determined
bascd on recent real estate transactions with similar characteristics and in the location to those of the
Group’s assets. In the absence of such information, the Group determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgment, the Group considers informarion from
variety of sources including:

a  current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location
{or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;

L. recent prices of similar propertics in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
i economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at thase prices; and

<. DOCF projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms of any
existing lease and other contracts and (whera possible) from external evidence such as current
market rents for similar propemties in the same location and condition, and using pre-tax discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amounts and timing of the
cash flows,

The significant methods and assumptions used by the valuers in estimating fair values of investment
properties are set out in Mete 13, The fair values, which are also the carrving values of investment
properties, amounted to P27 [ 10867 488 and P26.743,225,950 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
(see Mote 13),
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UL of Property and Equipment

The Group estimales the EUL of propery and equipment based on the internal technical evaluation
and expericnce with similar assets. EUL of preperty and squipment are reviewed penadically and
updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical and
commercial obsolescence and other limits on the use of property and equipment. There were no
changes in EUL of the Group’s property and cquipment. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the
carrying vales of property and equipment amounted to B67,009.417 and B67,093.620, respectively
{sce Note 16).

{mpairment of Nonfinancial Assets, Including Goodwill

The Gronp assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all nonfinancial assets at
gvery reporting date.  Nonfinancial assets with indefinite life such as poodwill are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when impairment indicators exist. Other nonfinancial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the camying amounts may not be
recoveribls.

The factars that the Group considers mportant which could trigger an impairment revicw include the
following:

v sipnificant undemperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating resulis;

v gignificant changes in the mamner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for ovemll
business; and

*  sipnificant negative industty or economic trends.

If any such indication exists or in case of nonfinancial assets with indefinite life, the recoverable
amount of the asset iz cstimated. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognized. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value i use. Value in usc is the present value of estimated futurg cash
flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of uts
uscful life. Recoverable amount is cstimated for an mdividual asset or, if it is not possible, for the
CGU to which the asset belongs.

[n 20013, the Group made a reassessment of the recoverable amount of the real estate development
project of KRC due to the approval by its Board of its redevelopment. Accordingly, gain on the
reversal of impairment loss on this project recognized in profit or loss in 2013 amounted fo
BIBL 954 6497 (sec MNote 14).

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, based on management’s assessment, there are no indications of
impairment for the rest of the Group’s nonfinancial assets composed of properties held for sale,
prepayments and other current assets, investment in associates, investment properties, real estate
development projects, property and equipment and goodwill.

Vstimation of Retirement Benefit Costs

The cost of defined benefit plan as well as the present value of defined benefit obligation is
determined using actuarial valuations. Actuarial valuations involve making vanous assumptions.
Thess include the determination of the discount mates, fiture salary increases, mortality rates and
fiture retirement increases, Due to the complexity of the valuations, the underlying assumplions
and the long-term nature, defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in the
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The net defined benefit lability as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013 are 55,626,328 and 29,602,931, respectively (see Note 27),
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In determining the appropriate discount rate, manasement considers the inlerest mies of government
bonds that are denominated in the currency i which the benefits will be paid, with extrapolated
maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables and is modified accordingly with
gstimates of mortality improvements, Future salary increases and retirement increases are based on
expected fioture inflation rates.

Further details about the assumptions used are provided in Note 27

Realizability of Deferved fncome Tax Assets

The Group reviews the carrving amounts of deferred meome tax assets at each reporting date and
reduces them to the extent that 1t s no longer probable that sufficient fiture taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax aszets to be wtilized. The Group expects to
gencrate sufficient future taxable profits to allow its mcopnized deferred income tax zssets to be
utilized, Deferred income tax assets recounized as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 amounted to
£300,792,965 and B432 625 901, respectively (see Note 29). The unrecognized delerred income tax
assets of the Group are disclosed in Nete 20

Segment Information

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed according to the nature of the products
and services marketed, with each segment representing a strategnc business unit that offers different
products and serves different markets.

The Group has operations only in the Philippines.
The Group derives revenues Tom two main segments as follows,

Property Development
This business segment pertains to the sale of condominium units,

Leasing
This business segment pertains to the leasing operations of the Shangri-La Plaza Mall, TEC and their
related carpark operations. It also includes leasing of a portion of the Parent Company’s land 10
ESHRI.

Cither business segments pertain to property management services and the results of operations of
real estate entities and BV companies.

Except for the rental revenue from ESHRI, revenucs come from transactions with third partics,
There is no transaction with a single external costomer that amounts to 10% or mare of the Group’s
AUoreale teveImgs,
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5 Cash and Cash Equivalents
This account consists of:
2014 2013
Cash on hand and in banks B4M,681 437 P143 428 962
Cash equivalents 2,506,323,383 [,748,017.981
B2911,004,820 B 89] 446943
Cash i banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Temporary mvestments are made for
three months or less depending on the immediate cash requirement of the Group and earn mierest at
the respective temporary investment rates. Temporary mvestments, which have an average maturity
of 30 davs, cam interest ranging from 1.75% to 2.00% in 2014, 1.00% to 1.88% in 2013, and 3,40%
to 3.53% in 2012.
Total inlerest income earned from cash in banks and cash cquivalents amounted to P25 492 852,
B44 451,855 and 833,284 973 in 2014, 2013 and 2012 respeetively (see Note 23).
As of December 31, the Group's cash and cash equivalents include United States Dallar (US%) and
Hong Kaong Dollar (HICE) deposits with local banks as [ollows:
US Dollar HE Dollar
2014 2013 2014 2013
Foreign currency $1,488,019 £1,153264 $218,002 E371.802
Peso equivalent B66,544,230 PB51,199,142 B1,253,513  P2,129.349
Closing exchange rate per dollar
as at December 31 P44.72 B4 34 B5.75 B3.73
Unrealized foreign exchange gains charged to profit or Ioss amounted to BS530.730 in 2014 and
B4.08L,797 in 2013,
6. Financial Assets at FVPL

Financial assets at FVPL represent shares of stock of various publicly listed companies as of
December 31, 2004 and 2013,

The movements in this account arc as follaws:

2014 2013
Beginning balance B30,348,704 P32 275,696
Fair value adjustment (Mote 23) 2,663,820 (1,926,992}
Ending balance B33,012,524 B30, 348,704

The Group recognized unrealized gains (losses) on fair value adjustments of the investments
amounting to B2 663 820 m 2014, (#1,926,992) n 2013, and B4,936,1 10 in 2012 (sec Note 23).
There were no additions or disposals in 2014 and 2013,
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Eeceivables

This account consists of:

2014 2013
Trade:

Installment contracts receivable P2.842.228,694 B2229965,071
Rent (Mote 31) 201,286,080 139,562,308

Montrde:
Advances to contractors and suppliers 1,031,179,038 1,133,149,175
Related parties (Note 310 42,794,110 23,761 686
Advances to officers and emplovees 7605914 1,373,381
Interest 1,607,524 1,064, 00d
Others 43,424,463 12,368,799
4,170,305.823 3541345602
Less allowanee for impairment loss 5,056,439 7,074,077

P4,162,249384 BRI 534271525

Installment contracts receivable represent noninterest-bearing receivables from sale of condominium
units with average term ranging from one to five vears, Installment contracts receivables are subjact
tor gither bank financing or in-house financing and are discounted vsing prevailing intercst mfes at
the dates of ransactions. The differences between the present values and face wvalues of the
reeeivables are amoertized using the EIR methed over the term of the respective contracts,  lonterest
income from zeeretion of mstallment contracts receivable amounted to B236, 879,642, B228.037,161
and 276,243 376 in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respactively {s2e Mote 23).

Advanees to contractors and suppliets are noninterest-bearing downpayments made to them and are
recouped upon cvery progross billings payment depending an the percentage of completion,

Rental receivables arc noninterest-bearing and pertain to rental focs charged to tenants and to the
Group's affiliates for the office, commercial and campark spaccs.  The normal credit terms rangs
Fromn 30 to 60 days.

Advances to officers and emplovees are normally settled within the nest financial year.

The terms, balances and transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note 31,

Other receivables are nonintergst-hearing and consist of banner and non-tenant related receivables,

The movements of the allowance for doubeful accounts in 2014 and 2013 arc ag follows:

2014 2013
Beginning balance BT.074,077 P7.OT4077
Bad debts 982,362 =
Ending balance P3,056,439 B7.074,077
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The following table shows the expected cash flows from installment contracts receivable as of

December 31;

2014 2013

Expected cash flows in;
2014 B P2SET A2 122
2013 4,795 800,178 2,619,058 049
2016 1,099,457,377 395,512,957
2017 570,046,949 30175441
2018 647,885,065 -
7,113,189,569 5,632 438 3735
Less unamortized discount and uncamed income 4,270,960,875 3,402 472 504
B2 842 228694 B2 220 966071

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, excess collections from condominium unit boyers based on the
percentage of completion method were recorded as part of the “Customers’ deposits”™ account

amaunting to BO435 320 881 and R200,656,859, respectively (sec Note 18).

The movements in the unamortized discount and wneamned ncome on inslallment contracts

receivahble are as follows;

2014 2013
Beginning balance B3402,472,504 B4 338308419
Additions 4,869,645,906 3227171550
Recognized as sales and interest income {4,001,157,535)  (4.163,207,465)
Ending balancs B4 270960875 B3 402 472504
Properties Held for Sale
This account consists of:
2014 213
Condomininm units hetd for sale $103,768,502 BI19.318,437
Construction in Progress 5,669,349,192 2,323,991 3358

B3,773,117,694

B2 443 509795

Condominium units for sale pertain to the completed residential condominium projects of the Group.

Construction in progress pertains to the Group's on-going residential and mixed-use condominium

projects.

The moverments in “Condominium umits held for sale” account are as fallows:

2014 2013
Beginning balance P119,518,437 B210 446,366
Recognized cost of condominium sales (Note 24) (15,749,935) {20,927,920)
Ending balance P103,763,502 £119518,437
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The movements in “Construction in progress™ account are as follows:

2014 2013

Beprinning balance P2323.991358 B3 130517781

Constmction or development costs mourred 5,772,052,021 2084559752
Recognized cost of condominiurm sales (Mote 24 (2,426,604,187)  (2,900.086,175)

Ending balance B5,669,349,192 B23239913353

Construction in progress consists of:

2014 2013

Cronstruction costs B3.689,140346  PLOT0DI0.267

Land 1,323,291.070 $25.295.950

Project management 369,473,200 265,603,229

Professional and consultancy fees 287,444,567 [63,081.912

B5,669.349,192 PB2323,991 358

The Group has no unusual purchase commitments as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,

Condominium units held for sale and construction in progress are stated at cost as of December 31
2014 and 2013, There were no allowances for inventory write-down as of December 31, 2014 and
2013

Prepayments and Other Current Assets

- 2014 2013
Input tax B1,0:39,008,790 BIa2812,148
Cash in escrow 352,027,489 -
CWT 222,707,813 127,938,208
Prepaid commission 159,004,639 143,394 878
Other prepaid expenses 32,443,275 56,514,002

B1,805,192,006 B4O7 639236

Input tax represents VAT paid to suppliers that can be claimed as credit against the future cutput
VAT liabilities without preseription,

Cash in cscrow pertains to the cash deposited with a local bank in compliance with the cscrow
agrecmnent between TRDCH, a local bank and the Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board
(MLURB). The cash in escrow shall be released upon written notice of the HLURB to an escrow
agent upen submission by TRDCT of cerlzin requirements.  Pursuant 1o the escrow agreement. the
HLURE issued a temporary license to sell to TRDCL

CWT is the tax withheld by the withholding agents from payments to the Group which can be
applied against the income tax payable.

Prepaid commission pertaing to the excess of the commission paid to property conzultants and
brokers, and the commission expense for the year based an the percentage of completion.

Other prepayments mainly consist of advance payments for insurance. real property taxes, rent, and
other expenses which are normally utilized within the next fimancial year.
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10, Investments in Associates

This account consists of;

2014 2013
Acquisiion costs
Beginning balance B2290,388,110 B2358849343
lteclassification as a result of business
combinations {(Mote 12) (1,809,577 ,485) -
Additions to investment 15,000,000 @, 100 000
Disposal of investment - (74.561.233)
Ending balance 495,810,625 2,290 388,110
Accumulated share in net profits
Beginning balance 150,922,180 135,350,259
Reclassificatiom as a result of business
combinations (Note 12) {226,249.673) -
Share in net losses of assoclates (0,692,903) (4,674,079}
Ending balance (R3,020,396) 130,022,180

P410,790,220  P2441.310,290

On April 30, 2014, the Group obtained control over bath SGCPT and FBSHI through step aceuisition
a5 discussed i Note 12, The amount of investment in associate reclassified to investment m

subsidiary is £2,033,827,1 538

In 2013, the Group sold 623,800 commen shares representing 35% interest in EPRC for a tortal
consideration of B92,000,000. Gain on the disposal of EPRC shares recognized in the profit or loss
amounted 1o B17,435.767 (sce MNote 23)

The Group is restricted from declaring dividends out of the accumulated sharc in net profits unil
these are declared by the associates.

All of the Group’s associates are considered to be immatenal mdividually, The Group’s associates
are as follows:

Percentages of Ownership

2014 2013
Sky Leisure Properties, Inc. (SLP1) 50.00% 30.00%
Idezal Sites and Propertics, Inc. (ISPT) 40, 00% 0.00%
Shang Global City Properties, Inc, (SGCPL* - 40 00%,
Fart Bonifacio Shangri-la Hotel, Inc, (FBSHIY** - 0300 %
Oithers various Various

* Tha Pavent Company effectively owns 605 equiny interest in SGCET as af Decemter 31, 214 (500 Wote {2
=% Previgusly owed tirough SFEHI merged with SGCPL the swrviving eniily, in the cxrvent year (ree Note {2)

The aggregate amount of the Group's share in the net gains {losses) after tax and total
comprehensive income (losses) of these associates are (B9,692.903) in 2014, (B4.674,079) n 2013

and B29 490,674 1n 2012,

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Group has no share in any contingent Liabilities or captal
cammitments.
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Ll Material Partly-Owned Subsidiary

The proportion of equity interest beld by the NCT of KSA and SGCPI. the Group’s subsidiaries with
M that are deemed marerizl, are as follows:

2014 2013
KA 47.1% 47 1%
SGCPI 40.0% =

The summarized financial information of matenal subsidiarics are provided below. This information
15 based on amounts before inter-company eliminations.

K54 Realty Corporation

2014 2013
Summarized Statements of Comprehensive
Eental revenuoe BO05,609,013 B236,632.466
General and administrative expenses {61,821.207) (64,206,912)
Finance cast - net {1,724 ,886) (3,906,763)
Other income - net 7567826 3,796,880
Ineome before income tax 849,630,656 770,335,671
Provision for income tax (159,322,635) (150,743 .910)
Total comprehensive income Be00,308,021 B61%391,761
Met income and total comprehensive income
attributable o
Equity halders of the Parent Company PI65,172,943 B127 764 042
MCI 325,135,{}'?_3 291 827719

BoO0,308,021 Bo 1O 391 76

Dividends paid to NCI B376, 800,000 BG4 850,000
Summarized Statements of Financial Position

Current assets F492,715.947 RANG 146,406
Monaumen! assets 8,105,438,224 B3 403 519
Current liabilities {396,686,088) (282.403.076)
Moncurrent habilities (1,523,018,230)  (1,740.689.622)
Equity RG378,449,853  P6,516455217

Equity atributable ro:
Equity holders of the Parent Company P3374,199972 B3 447 227352
NCI 3004249881 3069270478
P5378,4498353  Bo 516497830
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2014 2013

Summarized Statements of Cash Flows

Operating activities PI70,395 062 PAOR, 247,235
[nvesting activities (3,757.036) (1377 HAD)
Financing activities {(691,073,780) (386,372512)
Met effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 2,823 26,490
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BT75,567,060 BE0.523.361

Shang Clobal City Fraperfies, Inc

2014
Summarized Statement of Comprehensive Income
Sale of condominium units B425.762,627
Cost of sales of condominium units (208,51 3,630)
General and administrative expenses (16,697,532)
Other income - 1wt 4,464,422
Income before income tax 205,015,851
Frovision for income tax 58,303,499
Total comprehensive income B146,712,382
Net ingome and total comprehensive income attributabls to:
Equiry holders of the Parent Company P88, 027,429
NCI 58,684,953
Bl4ds, 712 382
Summarized Statement of Financial Position
Currcnt assets P4,279.418,110
Maoncument assets 3,290,510,528
Current liabilities {5,393,047,264)
Moncuwrrent Liabilitics (6,833,359,635)
Equih' B343,322.039
Equity attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company B2H,113,223
NCI 137,408,816
P343,522,039

As a result of the business combination in 20014, WCT was remeasured in the consolidated staterent
of financial position resulting to additional balance amounting to #823,672, 481 (see MNote 12).

2014
Summarized Statement of Cash Flows
COperating activities (B2,949489,701)
Investing activities (152,322,639
Financing activities 3.378,025,000
Met effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 156,996
Met increasc in cash and cash equivalents P140,369,656

T
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Mo dividends were paid to SGCPI's NCT o 2014,

The principal place of business of KSA is at Sth Floor, Tower 2, The Enterprise Center, 6766 Avala
Avenue comer Paseo de Roxas, Makati City while the principal place of business of SGCPI is at
Crescent Park West District, Fort Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City.

. Business Combination

Aceuisition of additional 20% egnity interest in SGOPL and FESHT

SGCP) and FBSHI are the developers of a mixed-use hotel, condominium, and retail tower, locate
in Bonifacio Global City, Taguiz to be known as Shangri-La at the Fort. The project is 54.73%
completed as of December 31, 2014, Pre-selling of the residential units has already commenced in
2014 while the hotel is expected to begin operations in 2015,

On April 30, 2014, SGCHI and SFBHI, both wholly owned subsidiarics of the Parent Company.
each entered into an agreement and acquired the 20% equity interest of Alphaland Development, Inc.
{ Alphaland) in SGCPLand FBSHI.

Prior to the acquisition, the Parent Company through SGCHI and SFBHI effectively owned 40%
equity interest in SGCPI and FBSHI. SGCHI and SFBHI each acquired from Alphaland additional
20% interest in SGCPI and FBSHI, respectively, for a total cash consideration of
£1,700,000,000. As a result of the step acquisitien, the Group obtained contrelling interest in
SGCPLand FBSHI owning 60% equity interest over each of the acquired entitics.

The following are the fair values of the identifiable assers acquired and labilities assumed as of date
of acquisition:

SGCPI FBSHI TOTAL
Arzets
Cash and cash equivalents B3O912.445 2173039023 B234,951,508
Receivables 26,961 1,342,762 1,368,723
Property under development o 200,000,000 6,606, 161,000 1,496, 161,000
Prepavments and other current assets 271722020 566,766,301 3R.488.330
Property and equipment - net - 2,786,769 2,786,769
Refundable deposit - 13,275 800 15,273 800
5131661475 7437371635 12.589.033,130
Faahilities .
Trade and other payables 3,185,762 399,637 815 402,803,577
Income tax payable - 13615 13,615
Long term bank loan - 4,008 499 138 4 008 400,138
Dieposit for future stock subscription 1,976 487,102 1,941,512 8498 3918000000
Dicferred tax hability 782,412 892 154,658 230 037.071,122
- 2,762, 065,736 6,504 321,696 0356387452
Total identifiable net assers at fair value  2,309,595.719 £63 040 959 32326435678
Goodwill (Note 17) 140,355,211 120,315,653 260,270,864
Acquwisition oost B2,509,950 930 PO92,365,612 B3 502,516,542

As of acquisition date, the fair value of SGCPI's and FBSHI's property under development
amounted to B4 200,000,000 and B6,696,161,000, respectively. Their carrying amounts in SGCPI's
and FESHI's books amounted to £2 373 840,000 and B6, 180,633,566, respectively,
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The fair value of other assets and liabilitics approximates their carrying amounts since these are
short-term in nature or with current market temms.

The cost of the acquisition is determined as follows:

SGCPI FRSHI Total

Cash paid B1,009,571,776 BEO0 428224 RBL, 700,000,000

Mon-controlling interest 750189577 151,068,654 Q258,271
Agquisition-date fair value of

previously held interest 730,189,577 131,068,694 01,258 271

BI 500050930  PUD2,365612 B3 502516542

Analysis of cash flow on acquisition is as follows:

Cash paid {81, 700,000,000
Met cash acquired from subsidiaries 234,951 508
Net cash outflow on acquisition {B1 465,048 402)

MNon-controlling interest and fair value of previously held interest have been measured at the
proportionate share of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilitics assumed at fair value.

Gain from remeasurement of the previously held imerest to fair value amounting to RR24,431,141 is
recognized in profit or loss in 2014,

Goodwill from the business combination amounting to B269 870864 compriscs the fair value
adjustment of the property under development of SGCPIT and FBSHL

From the date of acquisition (April 30, 2014) to December 31, 2014, SGCPI, the surviving entity in
the merger, contributed B425,762,627 of revenue and B207.861.063 of income before tax to the
Group. If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, there would be no change in
the tolal revenue of the Group but income before tax of the Group would have been
B4 112 988,684,

Meraer of SGOCPI and FESHT

On May 3, 2014, the BOD and sharcholders of SGCPI and FESHI approved a proposed merger
between SGCPL and FESHI. On September 2, 2014, the article of merger was executed between
SGCPL and FBSHI The SEC approved the Companies’ application for  merger  on
December 17, 2014,

The merger is intended to accumulate the costs of construction in the surviving entity, allowing for
better tax management. The plan of merger states that FBSHI will transfer to SGCPIL its business
properties, assets and liabilities that are reflected in its April 30, 2014 audited financial statements.
Before and after the merger, both companies are effectively under the common control of Kerrv
Group Limited (KGL). KGL is the indirect parent company and investor of the stockholders of
SGCPI and FBSHI. Asa result, the merger was accounted for using the pooling of interests method.
The merger has no effect on the carrying amounts of the Group's assets and liabihines.
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13, lnvestment Propertics

2014
Land Buildings Tuotal
Beginning balances P13428400,270 $13,314,825,680 P26,743,223,950
Additions through
subsequent expenditures — 367,641,538 367,641,538
Ending balances P13,428400,270 PR13,682467,218 P27,110,867,488
2013
Land Buildings Teval
Beginning balances £12.606,823,739 812 5346904 620 23 [53.790.354
Additions through:
Acquisition 821,574 531 15,634,251 837208812
Subsequent cxpenditures - 752,226,779 152226774
Ending balances P13428.400270 RI3314 825680 PIG 743225950

The Group’s investment properties consist of commercial properties in Mandaluyong City and
Makati City under office, retail and land classes of asset, and other parcels of land held for capital
appreciation,  These classes of assets are based on the nature, characteristics and risks of cach
property.

The fair values of the properties are based on valualions as of December 31, 2012 performed by
Royal Asia Appraisal Corporation, an SEC aceredited independent appraiser. The valuation models
are in accordance with that recommended by the Intemational Valuation Standards Council, The
Group recorded fair value adjustments of investment properties amounting to 400,126 034 in 2012,
The Group has assessed that the fair value adjustment in 2014 and 2013 are insignificant,

The Fair value measurements for investment properiics have been caloporized as Lovel 2 for
parcels land and Level 3 for office and retail praperties,  The current use of these praperties is
their highest and best use.

The fair value of the Group’s land is determined using the market comparison method. Under the
market comparison method (or market comparison approach), a property’s fair value 15 cstimated
based on comparable transactions,  The market comparison approach is based upon the principle
of substitution under which a potential buyver will not pay more for the property than it will cost to
buy a comparable substitute property. In theory, the best comparable sale would be an cxact
duplicate of the subject property and would indicate, by the known selling price of the duplicate,
the price for which the subject propesty could be sold. The unit of comparnsen applicd by the
Group is the price per square meter (sqm). The markel comparizon approach is often used in
combination with cither DCF or the income capitalization method as many inputs to these
methods are based on market comparison.
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The following table presents the valuation technigques and unobservable key inputs used to value the
Group’s investment propertics catcgorized as Level 3,

Fanpe of
[Jnobservable
s
Fair Value as of (probability - Relationship of
Class of December 31, Waluation Unabsenvable weiglited Unobsenvable Inpans
Property 2014 Technique Inpuis averigg) te Fair Valug
TEC (Office) P5. 129,189 450 DCF Bental value B7053t0  The higher the remgal
B2 100 per value, the higher the
SUATE Meler fair value
Rent growih 5% The higher the rent
PEr Annpm growtly, the higher the
fair value
Average long- 9T The higher the
Lern ocoupancy rate, the
QCCUpAnGy rate higher the Fir value
Inflation tate 404 The higher the
inflalion rac, the
lower the fair value
Diiscount rate 8.6%% The higher the
discount rate, the
lower the fair value
Main Wing FOG14,84 ] 500 DCF Rental value P00 1o The higher the rental
an{j East P2,800 per value, the higher the
Wing of SOUALS meter fair value
Shangri-La
(Fetml)
Rent growth 5%-T% The higher the rent
PCr anTm growth, the highet the
fair valug
Averge long- 9T The higher the
ferm aoupancy mie, the
OCCUPHNCY Tale higher the T walug
Inflation rate i The higher the
inflation rate, the
lower the fair value
Digcoual rate B.6% The higher the

disconnt rate, he
Towver the Toir value

Under the DCTF methed, a property’s fair value is estimated using explicit assumptions regarding the
benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset’s wseful life including an exit or terminal value,
As an accepted method within the income approach to valuation, the DCF method involves the
projection of a series of cash flows on a real property interest. To this projected cash flow series, an
appropriate, market-derived discount rate is applied to cstablish the present value of the income
stream associated with the real property.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are deternuned by
evenis such as rent reviews, lease rengwal and related lease up periods, re-letting, redevelopment, or
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refurbishment.  The appropriate dumation is typically driven by market behavior that is a
characteristic of the class of real property. In the case of investment properties, periodic cash flows
are tvpically estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses, collection losses,
lease incentives, maintenance cost, agent and commission costs and other operating and management
expenses. The series of periodic net operating incomes, along with an estimate of the terminal value
anticipated at the end of the projection period, are then discounted.

The following are the significant unobservable inputs:

* Funre Rental Cash Inflows
Based on the actal location, type and quality of the propertics and supported by the terms of
any existing lease, other contracts and extemal evidence such as curent market rents from
similar propertics;

v Pivcounr Rotes
Reflecting current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows;

»  Bsfimaied Vacoancy Rafes
Based on current and expected future market conditions after expiry of any current lease;

» Maiptenance Costy
Including necessary investments to maintain functionality of the property for its expected useful
lifi, and

o Terminal Volue
Taking into aceount assumptions regarding maintenance costs, vacancy rates and market rents,

There are inter-relationships between unobservable inputs. Expected occupancy rate may impact
the yield with higher ocoupancy rate resulting to lower vields. An increase in future rental mcome
may be linked with higher costs. 1f the remaining lease term increases, the yield may decrease.

There are no changes to the valuation techniques during 2014 and 2013,

Rental revenue recognized for investment properties and direct operating expenses incurred for the
leasing operations in 2014, 2013 and 2012 are as follows;

014 2003 20102
Fental revenue P1624.893646 BZ33E990151  PBlIB43TGO313
Dircct oporating cxpinscs 440,430,051 419,425,933 406,578 013

Profit arising from investment
properties carried at fair value  £2,184,463,595  R1019.564. 168  £1,442,191 500
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14, Real Estate Development Projects

As of December 31, 2014, the Group recognized the real estate development project of SGCPI i the
consolidated finangial statements as a wesult of the business combimation (sec MNaote 12,

Real estate development project amounting to BEL211 283 922 as of December 31, 2014 pertains to
the construction cost of the hotel portion of SGCPT's Shangri-la at the Foo project, while the
construction cost of the project’s condominium units ave classified as Constroction in Progress under
Propertics Held for Sale.

As ol December 31, 2013, the real estate develapment project pertains ta the project of KRC that
had undgrgone mitial development activities,  Cosls meurred for this project include initial
construction costs, architect and professional foes, project management costs and borrowing costs.

In 2013, the Board of KRC subsequently approved the redevelopment of this real estate project.
Thus, the Gromp reversed the accummlated impaimment losses amounting to BI81,954.697 which
resulted from the uncertainty on the planned development due to suspension of the projeet. The
recoverable amount of the real cstate project 1s determined based on a value in use caloulation ysing
cash flow projecticns from fnancial budgets approved by management covering a four-vear period.
The cash flows hawve been prepared to reflect the marker selling price of a condominium unit per
suare meter and the expected costs of its construction per square meter. The pre-tax discount rate
apphed to the cash flow projections 15 21%.

In 2014, KRC acquired 100% ownership interest over TRDCL an entity incorpomted on April 22,
2014 and registered with the SEC. On the same date, KRC transferred to TRDCI its contractual
obligation to develop a high nse condominium boilding located in Makati Citv,  Consiruction
activitics for the project sommenecd during the surrent vear, As a result, the entire camryving amount
of real estate development project amounting to B484 883 587 was reclassified to Construction n
Pragress m 2014 {sce Mote 8),

. AFS Financial Assets

This account consists of:

2014 2013

At cost - unguoted B488,826,327 PARE 826,327
At fair value - quoted

Acquisition cost 9,121,515 9,121,513

Cumulative changes in fair value 4 575,000 4,375 000

o 13,996,515 12496515

$502,322.842 B302,322.342

Unquoted equity seeuritics include unlisted shares of stock which the Group will continue to carry as
part of its investment. The fair value of this investment cannot be reliably detormined, thus, it 13
carried at cost less allowance for impairment, if any.

The quoted equity secunties consist of investment in varigus golf club shares and stocks. These are
carrisd at fair values with cumulative changes in fair values presented as part of “Other components
of equity.”™ The fair values of these shares are based on the quoted market prices as of the reporting
date.
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Management intends to dispose the quated and unguoted equity shares through sale, as the need
arises.

The following table presents the movement in the carrving amount of AFS financial assets:

December 31, Change in  December 31, Charge in

December 31,

2012 Fair Valua 2013 Fair Valne 14

Al cost - ungquoted  B438 826,327 B B4SE 824327 P—  R4RE 826,327
At Birvalog -

quoted 13,196,515 300,000 13,496,515 SO0, 000 13,996,515

BA02,022,842 BI00 000 B302,322,842 B500, 000

B502,822,842

The movement in the cumulative changes in fair value of AFS financial assets is as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Beginning balance B4,375,000 B 075,000 B2,905,000
Increase in fair value S00,000 300, 000 1,110,000
Ending balance B4,875,000 B4 375,000 B4, 075000
L&, Property and Equipment
This account consists of
214
Furniture,
Building gnd Fixtures and
Building Transportation Other
Improvements Eguipmeni  Equipment Total
Cast
Beginning balances BAS,001 434 BIZAIZTTR  BHOSINGHTO  FI04,153,893
Additions 1941345 3,214,527 15,542,640 21, 398562
Beclazafication - (1,711,605 (a0 574) (2,672,179
Ending balances BG947.534 5015700 100,921,742 222,880,276
Accurmulated Depreciation and
Amortization
Bepginning balances 46,863,089 22671262 675230712 137,058,273
Depreciation and amortization 3492876 5,910,053 12,081,819 21484748
Reclassification - (1,711,605) {960,557) (2672,162)
Ending lxilances 50355965 26809,710 78645184 135 470,859
Net Bool Values BI6S586.869 PR, 1450090  B222T6,558 RATO09417
&
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M3

Fumiture,
Building and Fixturas and
Building  Transportation COiher
Improvements Equipment Equipament Total
Cost
Beginning balances 31,447 881 FI4649,130  BEDOTLETL  PI9G, 168352
Additions 4,220,952 302934 10242364 14,766,250
Disposals/Reclassification (667.394)  (2,139,286)  (3974,559) (6,781,239
Ending balances &5.001,439 32812778 56330676 204,153,843
Accumulated Deprecintion and
Amortization
Beginning balances 45294 G6Y 180415944 61513443 124 850,054
Drepreciation and amortization 2235805 6,418,455 94850100 18.639,2T0
Disposals/Reclassification (667.384)  (1789137)  (3974,530)  (6431,031)
Ending balances 46,863 080 22671262 67,523,922 137,058 273
Mot Boole Values B3R 138350 Bl10,141516  BISHISTSE BATOS5620

Tatal depreciation and amortization amounting to 81,070,591 in 2014 and 2461274 in 2013 were
capitalized as part of construction in progress.

As at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the gross carrving amount of fully depreciated property and
equipment still in use amounted to B94,520,818 and #80,232,448, respectively.

There arc no restrictions on the Group's title on the property and cquipment and there arc no
property and equipment pledzed as security for liabilities.

. Goodwill

The Group recognized goodwill in 2014 as a result of the business combinations during the year.
The excess of the acquisition cost over the fair value of wdentifiable assets and liabilitics assumed
amounted to 8269 370,864

On January 14, 2008, the Parent Company purchased additional equity interest in KSA resulting to
control. On July 25, 2007, the Parent Company acquired Kuok Philippine Propertics. Inc. through &
merger where the former is the surviving entity.  The aggregate amount of goodwill from both
transactions was B394 926,460,

The reeoverable amount of the goodwill arising from the acquisition of KSA was estimated based on
the value-in-use computation using cash flow projections approved by management covering a five
year period. Goodwill is identifiable with KSA’s investment property. the CGU. The discount rate
applied in 2011 to the cash flow projections was based on the Group's WACC.

In 2001, the recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill 15 allocated approximates the
carryving amount of the CGU because of the increass in the discount rate to 18.37% in 2011, This
resulted to recognition of full provision for impairment loss amounting to B394,926 466,
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14 Accounts Payable and Other Curvent Liabilities

Thig account consists of®

2014 2013
Trade:

Accounts pavable B140,750,549 B122357.039

Accrued expenses:
Construction 925,298,088 BT, 788,369
Interest 47,886,875 21,973,153
Commission 47,604 434 53,253,126
Administrative 28,707,910 11,305,119
Repairs and maintenance 22,591,641 L L, 844,967
Outside services 13,329,749 21403875
Professional fecs 7,930,546 6,237.637
(rhers 282 843937 185,656,147
Retention payables 1,006,949,126 SEL1Y9.03%
Customers” deposits 992,139,524 205 446,877
Rescrvation payvables 367,124,866 215,404,069
Advances from condomininm unit buvers 217,346,741 74,437,107
Constrction bonds 54,535,902 33,150619
Pavable to contractors and supplicrs 44,007,825 44,007 825

Montrade:

Deferred output WAT 107,826,686 B4, 267,893
Withholding taxes 50,707,384 21946411
Output YAT 43,697.652 46,648,733
Pavable to related parties (Mote 31) 43,629,767 43,131,010
Other current liabilities 338,123,563 230,512,403

P4.883,213,157 P2A51.001467

Accounts pavable and accrued cxpenscs are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled within 20
ta 60 davs and within the next financial year, respectively.

Other accrued expenses consist of accruals for utilities, advertising and promotions, msurance, other
employes related cost and other generl and administrative expenses.

Retention pavables represent the portion of contractor billings which will be paid upon satisfaction
bv the conttactors of the conditions specificd in the contmets or unil the defects have been
corrected.

Customers’ deposits mainly represent excess of collections from buyers over the related revenue
recognized based on the percentage of completion method. This account also includes deposits for
transfer and titling related expenses and reservation fees paid to the Company by prospective buyers
which are to be applied against the receivable upon recognition of revenue and advance pavments
received for parking amrangements made with customers.

Rescrvation payables pertain to cash paid by the buyers of condominium units for the reservation of
the units purchased. These shall be considered as part of the downpayment on the units purchased
upon execution of the contrmets.

Advances from condominium unit buyers pertain to the amounts received n advance from the
condominium unit buvers of TSFSP for utilities, maintenance, repairs of common arcas and titling
26
SHANG PROPERTIES | 2414



fees. These will be paid to TSESPCC and OSPCC when demanded, TSFSPCC and OSPCC arc
affiliates through interlocking directors

Construction bonds pertain to cash deposits posted by tenants as security lor any expenscs or
damages that may be incurred by SLPC in relation to construction activities conducted by the tenants
during the fit-out, as well as during renovation period of the lease. It is normally retumed to the
tenants within six months after completion of their construction activities.

Payable to contractors and suppliers represents progress billings from various contractors for the
material and labor costs incurred 1o date with normal credit teems of 30 to 60 days, but may go
beyvond as agreed.

Withhalding taxes payable are expected to be settled within the next financial year,

Deferred output VAT represents output VAT on unpaid portion of recognized receivable from sale
of real estate. This amount is reported as cutput VAT upon collection of receivable.

Output VAT represents tax due and payable after deducting the corresponding input VAT,

The terms, balances and the volume of related party transactions which were and were not
eliminated during consolidation are disclosed in Mote 31

Other current liabilities pertain mainly to taxes, msurance, and various immaterial account balances.

In 2012, long-outstanding liabilities amounting to BR 836,466 were derceognized. There were no
derecognized long-outstanding liabilities in 2014 and 2013 (see Note 23).

19.

Bank Loans

This account consists of borrowings of the following entities:

2014 2013
SGCP1 (Note 12) BG,752,835,572 B
Parent Company 5,005,833,333 4,779, 166,667
SLPC 300,000,000 1642852714

12,148,668,905 4,943 452 381

Less current portion:
Parent Company 583,333,333 647619043
Moncurmrent portion B11,565,335572  £4.293 433333

SGOPS

On February 17, 2012, the Board of the Parent Company passed and approved a resolution wherzin
it will act as a surety to the loan of FESHI, now SGCPI, the surviving entily in & merger as discussed
in Note 12. On April 11, 2012, FBSHI secured & RI0,000,000.000 long-term loan facility with a
local bank to finance the construction of a hotel, serviced apartment, and residential units in Fort
Bonifacio, Taguig City in relation to the Shang at the Fort Project. Under the continuing suretyship
agreement excouted between the Parent Company and the local bank on May 23, 2012, the Parent
Company agreed to be solidarily liable to the extent of 50% of any and all amounts duc under the
loan agreement between FBSHI and the local bank. The local bank is entitled under current
jurisprudence to demand direetly from the Parent Company any and all amounts due.
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Under the terms of the loan agreement, the principal amount of the loan shall be pavable in 24 equal
fuarterly consecutive installments commencing an the 17th quarter from the initial drawdown, with
the last installments in an amount sufficient o fully pay the Toan,  Interest shall b paid on cach
interest pavment date for the relevant interest period based on three-month treasury bill rale as
published in the PDST-F. SGCPI has the option to prepay and to fix the interest rate.  Further,
SGCPI is required to maintain a 2.5:1 ratio of consolidated debt to consolidated tangible net worth,
which was complied with by SGCPIL

The loan is secured by an absolute and unconditional continuing surstyship of the sureties namely
Shangri-La Asia Limited and the Parent Company.,

The loan 15 subject o a front-end foe of 23 basis paints (0.25%) of the tolal principal amount. The
front-end fee is considered a tansaction cost which iz allocated based on cach drawdewn and
amortized using cffective interest rate. Debt issue costs also include the documentary samp tax paid
by SGCPI for each drawdown. As of December 31, 2014, unamortized debt issue cosl amounted to
BI0,018.107.

Subject to the negative covenants of the loan, from and after signing the loan agreement and for as
long as the loan is outstanding, SGCPI. without the prior written consent of the bank, shall not
declare or pav dividends to its stockhalders (other than dividends pavable solely in sharcs of its
capilal stock) if pavinent of any sum due to the bank is in arrears.

Parent Company

On February 12, 2008, the Parent Company cbtained an unsecured ten-year term loan facility from a
local bank amounting to #3,500,000,000 with interest based on the higher between the PDET-F rate
plus 0.75% per annum and the BSP overnight borrowing rate. The loan is payable in 24 cqual
quarterly installments commenging on the 17th quarter from the initial borrowing date and is subject
to a certain debi-to-squity ratio which was complied with by the Parent Company. The Parent
Campany has fully dmwn the facility as of December 31, 2009,

On July 30, 2012, the Parent Company obtained another ten-year loan facility from a local bank
amounting to £3,000,000,000 with interest based on the higher between the three-month Treasury
Bill rate as published in the PDST-F plus a spread of 0.75% per annum and the BSP ovemight
borrowing rate. The Company has a one-time option o convert from a floating rate into a fixed rate.
The loan is pavable in 24 equal quarterly installments, commencing on the 17th quarter from the
initial borrowing date. Tt is secured by a ‘negative pledge’ on all present and future assets of the
Parent Company and is subject to a debt service coverage ratio. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
total drawdown from the facility amounted ta 3,200,000,000 and B2, 300,000,000, respectively.

SLPC

Om June 25, 2007, SLPC obtained an unsecured seven-vear term loan from a local bank amounting
to BOOO000,000 for permanent working capital and refinancing of SLPC’s existing loans with
interest based on the higher between the PDST-F and the BSP overnight borrowing rate. The loan is
payable in 28 cqual quarterly installments commencing at the initial dwdown dates, and 1s subject
to a cerlain debt-to-equily ratio which was complied with by SLPC. The loan has been repaid in
2004,

On November 5, 2012, SLPC obtained an unsecured ten-year term loan facility from a local bank
amounting to 21 400,000,000 to partially finance its mall redevelopment program with interest based
on the higher between the PDST-F rate plus 0.75% per annum and the BSP overnight borrowing
rate. The loan is pavable in 24 equal quarterly nstallments commencing on the 17th guarter from
the initial borrowing date and is subject to a certain debt-to-equity ratio which was complicd with by
SLPC.
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The current and noneurrent portions of the bank loans as of Decentber 31 and its movements during
the vear are as follows:

2014 2013
Beginaing principal balancs B4.043 452381 B 405433333
Loan acquired from SGCPI as a result of

the busingss combination 4,008,499,138 -
Proceeds from loan availment,

nel of unamortized debt issue costs 3,754,336434  1,400,000,000
Principal payvments during the year {647,610.048) (952,980,952)

Ending principal balance
Less current partion

12,148,668,905

583,333,333

4,543 452381
647,619,048

Noneurrent portion B11,565,335,572

23205833333

Interes: expense arising from the above loans charged to profit or loss in 2014, 2013 and 2012

amounted to 2194498 162, 2182, 181,047 and £164,423.225, respeetively (see Note 23

Repavment Schedule
The repayments of long-term debt are scheduled as follows:

Y ear Amount
2014 PIRI 5353
20146 1,412,736,298
2017 2263 2262138
2018 1,856, 813,175
019 1,710,579 8472
2020 1,710,979 842
21 1,710,979 842
2022 881,376,877
2033 13,043 478

P12 145 668,903

20, Deposits from Tenants

This account represents noninterest-bearing rental deposits from tenants equivalent ta six menths’
rent which have been discounted using MART 1 rates and are carried at amortized cost.  The
difference between the discouited and face values of the deposits was recognized as deferred lease
income. Deforred lease income is amortized on a straight-line bagis over the lease term and is
recognized in profit or loss as additional rent income., Interest is accreted on the deposits from

tenants using the EIR method and is recognized as additional interest expense m profit or loss,

The movements in the unamortized discount on deposits from tenants for the years ended

December 31 are as follows:

2014 2013
Beginning balance P33,267,608 £26,160.141
Additions 36,941,551 9,314,747
Amortization of discount (Note 23) (30,224,024) (2,207 .280)
Ending balance B39,985,135 B33 267 608
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Equity

The details of the Parent Company's capital stock as of December 31, 2014 and 2012 ar¢ as follows:

No. of Shares Amount
Authorzed - B1 par value 3.000,000,000 B8 000,000,000
Umissued {3,235941,018)  (3,235941,01%)
[ssued and fully paid 4 764,058,982 4 764,058 9532
Treasury shares {2.140.645) (2, 140.645)
lssued and u::uutstanding 4,761,918337  P4TR1,918337

The Parent Company is listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange. It was registered on June 13, 1991
with total listed shares of 4.764.058,982 which was initially issued at 118 per share.  As at
Decomber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Parent Company has 5,457, 5,553 and 5,899 stockholders,
respectively, The details of the Parent Company’s stockholders are disclosed in the annual report.

There are 2,140,645 shares that are in the treasury amounting to 86,830,064 as of December 31,
2014 and 2013, There are no movements in the Group's treasury shares in 2014 and 2013,

As of December 31,2014 and 2013, retained earnings include accumulated fair value adjustments of
investment properties not available for dividend declaration amounting to B12,322 614883

22

Dividends

Asg of December 31, 2014 and 2013, unpaid dividends amounted to B104,294 980 and £20,844,007,
respectively,

The Parent Company’s Board approved the declaration of the following cash dividends for the years
ended December 31

Date of Declaration Record Date Total Per Share
2014
February 19 Mareh 17 B333.454,129 BOOTO
August 14 August 29 309,375,117 {1,065
P642,859,246 B0.133
2013
February 27 March |5 P285,843,539 BO.O60
Angust 14 Anpust 30 237,967,098 0.050
B323.811.237 RO110_
2012
February 17 harch 3 R200,090,477 20.042
August 23 September 15 |90, 386,769 0,040
B390 477 246 B(O32
90
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Interest [nooms

23, Interest Income, Other Income (Charges), and Interest Expense and Banl Charges

2014 2013 2012
Interest an:
Accretion of installment
contracts receivable F236,879,642 P228.027 161 P226,248.576
{Cash in banks and
cash cquivalents 25,492,852 44, 45 BI3 53284973
Overdue aceounts fram
tenants 6,988,535 6,937,831 4,980,064
P269,361,029 F270.426,867 B284 513613
Other Ineame (Charges)
2014 2013 2012
Dividend meome BI15,234,198 BIR 2334356 Bid 695511
Administration and
management fee (Note 31) 12,506,351 11,642,137 10.673.047
Customer lounge fee 5,439,786 826773 6,573,821
Forfeited security deposits 6,185,855 1,425 085 17,866 901
Fair value adjustments
of financial assets at FVPL 2,663,820 {1,926,992) 48936, 110
Insome from back-out buyers 2,009,793 3,181,975 2620075
Bammner income 2,141,016 2675584 3,043,607
Eevenue from ancillary services 2020822 3,063 401 5,534,096
Service revenue 485,749 | 257,919 319270
Craim on:
Disposal of investment in
associate - 17,438,767 -
Sale of property and
equipment - 216,983 163,535
Derecognition of long-
oulstandimg liabilities - - 8,830,460
Orhers (Mote 31) 15,379,290 46,326,184 9203 305
P&7,075,685 P112,392,231 $124,533 744
[ntercst Expense and Bank Charges
2014 2013 2012
Interest on bank loans and
bank charges B19G,842,320 B182, 734 583 BITL.776,128
Accretion of deposits from tenants 30,224,024 2,207 280 503 330
£227,060,344 Bl54 9ol 863 BIT2,279.47%

#1
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24, Cost of Condominium Sales

2114

2043

2012

SPRC
SPDI
SGCPL

Parent Company

P1,953,269,414

262,381,970
208,513,636
18,279,102

B2 903,561,684
73,463,348

13,987 067

B2 139862224

05015685

P2442,444,122

B2,901,014,104

P2224,877,009

Cieneral and Adminisirative Expenses

25 General and Administrative Expenses and Taxes and Licenses

SHANG PROPERTIES

| 2014

2014 2013 2012

Profezssional fees and cutside
services P56, 388,585 240,199 442 £31 948 297

Janitonial, security and other
SErvices 36,305,266 20,0872 284 25,497 461
Advertizing and promotions 18,594,903 24 3665010 43 812309
Urliries 16,127671 13,923 603 17,266,737
Repairs and maintenance 8,008,204 4,037 200 3009479
Supplies 7,422,906 5,785,450 5,255,568
Telephone and communication 6,737 498 5724174 6,248, 544
Condominium duss (Notc 21) 5,212,612 4432176 21,233,778
Svstems license and maintenance 4,026.878 1,936,271 24306643
Commission 3,301,285 3,580,279 $,266,241
Transportation and travel 2,980,507 2,945,008 2,524 495
Membership fees and dues 2,890,738 2670149 2.551.674
Gras and ol 1,938,806 1693 001 [ 405820

Entertamment, amusernant and
FCprescitation 1,938,106 1617455 2087 206
Bad debts (More T) 982,362 - 11,426,470
Reproduction charges 563,037 857,053 725909
Dramation 2 3,790,543 70,214
Others 18,199,233 7,163,030 15,5%03.333
P193,324,687 P156,933,328 P20 934 178
Taxes and Licenses
2014 2013 2012
Eeal estate mx B4, 774,820 BAE 300448 BOE 401 493
Business taxes 79,285,330 fed 326,130 69915032
Documentary slamp axes 19,408,687 L1, 367767 3226702
License and permit fees 539,630 631,744 T2 509
Others 11,438,375 437319 308,441
P205,446,842 Bl45 063 414 P14 573177
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26, Staff Costs

2014 2013 2012

Salarics and wages B246,583,276 £1492 447 590 FIE3.70d 5360

Employes benefits 27,055,713 20,782,573 20,604 B48

Retirement benefit costs (MNote 27) 16,371,642 22090972 12,371,261

Others 5,528,513 63,973 4,377,870

P295,539,144 241,336,108 B221.058 339

27, Accrned Employee Benefits
This account consists of

i 2014 2013

Retirernent benefits B55,6026,328 F20 612 931

Other emploves benefits 12,875,707 10,652,145

P6R,502.035 BAN 255 076

Accrued emplovee benefits pertain to liability for retirement, leaves and other related benefits
expected to be settled more than twelve months after the end of the annual reporting pericd.

Hetirement Benefits

The Group has a funded, noncontributory defined benefit retirement plan, providing death, disability
and retirement benefits for all of its regular employess. Under the plan, the normal retirement ags is
60 vears old and completion of at least five years of service. Normal relirement benefit consists of a
lump sum henefit equivalent to 100% of the emplovee’s final pay for every year of service.

The plan is administered by an independent trustee bank which is under the supervision of the
Group’s Treasury Department (Treasury), The Treasury is respensible for investment of the assets,
It defines the investment strategy as often as necessary, at least annually, especially in the case of
significant market developments or changes to the structure of the plan participants. When defining
the investment strategy, it takes into account the plans’ objectives, benefit obligations and risk
capacity. The investment strategy is defined in the form of a long-term target structure (investment
policy}.

Under the existing regulatory framework, Republic Act (RA) 7641 requires a provision for
retirement pay to qualified private sector employees in the absence of any retirement plan in the
entity, provided, however, that the employee’s retirement benefits under any collective bargaining
and other agreements shall nat be less than those provided under the law. The law does not require
minimum funding of the plan. The Group s compliant with this regulatory framework,

Renrement benefit costs recogmzed in the consolidated profit or loss as part of “Staff costs™ consist
of the following:

2014 2013 2012
Current service cost #15,492, 700 B1a, 110,440 B9 902 400
Met interest cost 878,947 3980332 2468 561
P16371,642 P22 000972 B12,371261
93
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The components of remeasurements, before tax effect, in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income are as follows:

2014 2013 20132
Actuarial loss (pain) in defined
benefit obligation 211,336,915 (P29.107.153) B40.622,108
Remeasurement loss (gain)
in plan asset 4,190,942 {7.123.2138) (4,111,243

Remeasurement loss (gain) on
changes in the effect of
asset cailing (3,018,101) 3,018,101 =
' P12,509,756 (833,212270) #36,510,860

The accrued retirement benefits recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position as part
of “Accrued emplovee benefits™ were determined as fallows;

2014 2003

Present value of defined benefit obligations B157,435294 BI2T 893 495
Fair value of plan assets {101,808 966) {101,308 665)
55,626,323 26,584 830

Restrictions on asset recognized - 3018101

£55,626.328 P20 602,031

The movements m the present value of defined benefit obligations are as follows:

2014 213
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year  R127,393,495 R144 503,032
Current service cost 15,492,700 16,110,440
Mer interast cost 5,263,469 T.203001
Actarial loss {gain) arising from:
Changes in financial assumptions 12,122,800 (1,083354)
Experience adjustments {755,855) {28.013,700)
Benefits paid (2,551,285 (10,907 933)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the vear *ESTAES,IM PI27 893,495 ”
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are as follows;
2014 2013
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year B101,308,605 B85, 825,088
Interest mcomes 4,384,527 1,312,559
TRemeasurement gain (loss) ' {4,190,942) 7123214
Contributions L 306,716 7,047 8040
Fair valuc of plan assets at the end of the year B101,808,966 BIOL,308 663
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The farr value of the Group’s plan assets by each class as at the end of the reparting period are as
ol s

2014 2013

Tovestments m debt instruments;
Treasury notes and bonds P56,182,010 £50,519,698
Corporate notes and bonds 5,745,859 3,014,949
Cash in banks 39,881,097 35474018

P101,808,9%66 B1O1,308,665

The effect of the asset ceiling in 2013 iz as follows:

2013

(1) Met assets* R4 912247

{2} Present value of available refund 1,404, 146
{3) Asset limit to be recognized in the statement of

financial position [lower of (1] and (2]] 1,854, 146

Unrecopnized asset due to asset hoit 3,008,110

Liability to be recognized in the financial position Bl 894 146

* Nt assets presented represent only those comparies ander the Group for wiil the forie valiee of plon assers is
gregier than e preson valive of obligation,

As of December 31, 2014, the present value of the Group®s defined benefit obligation is greater than
the fair value of the Group’s plan assets.

Significant portion of the debt instruments held have guoted prices in an active market.  The
remaining plan asscts do not have quoled market prices in an active market.  The plan asscts anc
highly concentrated in Treasury notes and bonds but have no credit risk since these are povemment
obligations,

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Future salary increase rato 5.00% 4,005 5.00%
Diseount rate 4.44% to 4.75% 425%to 5.89% 5.1 1% to 6.34%

Ascaleof 10% at  Ascaleof 10%aat A scale of 10%% at
age 20 decreasing ape 20 decreasing to age 20 decreasing
Tumover rate to 0% at age 45 (% at age 45 Lo (%% at age 43

dMortality rate 1% based on the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table for both 2014 and 2013

The discount rates vsed are the single weiphtad averape rate for each company based on hootstrapped
Fhilippinc Dealing System Treasury Reference Rates (PDST-R2) at various tenors as of
Deceenber 31, Rates for intermediate durations were interpolated. The rates were then weighted by
the expected benefit pavments at those durations to arnve at the single weighted average discount
rafe.

The turnover rate represents the proportion of corrent plan members who will resign from servies
prior to their retirement date and hence be entitled to resignation benefits instead of retirement
benefits.
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There were no changes from the previous period in the methods and sssumptions used in preparing
sensitivity analysis.

The sensitvity analvsis below has been determined based on reasonably possibic changes of cach
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the cnd of the reporting peniod,
assuming all ather assumptions were held constant:

Significant Assumptions Diefined Banefit Obligation
DHscount rate
Increasze of 1% RI12.655707
Decrease of 194 (13,025 893)
Future salary increase rafe
Increase of 1% (13,834,893)
Decrease of 1% 12073207

The management performed an Assct-Liability Matching Study (ALM) annually.  The overall
mvestment policy and strategy of the Group’s defined benefit plans 18 guided by the objective of
achieving an investment return which, together with contributions, ensures that there will be sufficient
assels to pay retirement benefits as they fall due while alse mitigating the various nisk of the plans.
The Group's current strategic investiment strategy consists of 34% treasury investments, 3% corporate
investments and 4 1% cash.

The Group expects to contribute 226, 709 982 1o the defined benefit plan in 2015,

The average dumation of the defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2004 and 2013 ranges
from 12 to 30 years and 13 to 31 years, respectively.

Sherwn below is the maturity analvsis of the undiscounted benefit payments:

Expected Benefit Payments

{ther than

Mormal Mormal
Plan Y ear Retirement Betirement Total
Lezs than ons year 11,804,964 B1,617363 B3 482327
More than one year to five vears 0,770,139 7252600 8022748
Mare than five years to 10 years 69,103 474 12,014,770 21,208,246
More than 10 vears to 15 years 06,931,934 11,813,573 108,765 300
Maore than 13 vears to 20 yvears 136,461 545 12,054 933 148,316,779
More than 20 vears to 25 vears 311,774 943 21,011,301 332,796,244

SLPC collects reimbursements from tenants, based on either a fixed amount or a percentage of sales,
for the tenants” share in the costs of utilities, janttorial, security and other expenses on common areas
shared by SLPC and the tenants. SLPC also collects reimbursements from the tenants for the actual
costs of utilities, repairs and mainlenance used by the tenants in their leased areas. All unreimbursed
expenses arc bome by SLPC and accordingly reported as opemting costs
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The details of the account for the years ended December 21 are as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Light, penwer and water B377.273.041 B363 579 393 B266 38T 81T
Janitorial, security and
other services 97,039,934 BL 019 906 60,371 4590
Repairs and maintenance 57,352,106 47 428 008 43 214,758
Advertising and promotions 56,117,121 41,546,349 20,207 449
Tenants' reimbursements (501,835,831) (dd6,380,891) (383,320.657)

35,043,421 £96,092,860 P11,051 366

29 Income Taxes

a.

b,

The details of provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31 follow:

2014 2003 2012

Current:
RCIT PRIG,844,302 RR04,552,294 £458 301,717
Excess of MCIT over RCIT 4,015,210 3,285,026 -
Final tax on interest income 3,749,300 8,890,371 10,655,437
924,608,812 216,727,601 368,057 144
Drefirred 170,892,927 (63,297.967) 67235367

B995,501,739  P751,429,724  B336,192,511

The dletails of the recognized net deferred income tax assets (liabilities) at Decernber 31 follow:

2014 2013

Difference in profit, installment method versus

POC method P284,183,755 RI69, 806 637
Advance rental 63,814,474 35,167 644
Accrued expenses 47,074,369 7,258 4535
Accrued employee benefits 26,960,297 12076523
Accunmlated impairment losses 14,932,510 -
Acciued construction costs 14,389,055 6,485,382
Deferred lease income 11,472,017
Excess MCIT aver RCIT 4,709,164 693 953
Unameortized funded past service cost 2,311,551 3,238,002
Oihers 443,279 1,627 819
Deferred tax asscls 470,290,471 366,444 435
Unrealized increase in fair value of

investment property (6,690,778,630} {5,488715733)
Unamorrized discount on deposits from enants (12,767,123) (11,733,663)
Unrealized gain on foreizn exchange (138,463) 5400478
Deeterred dax habilities (6,703,784,216)  (5,495,048,940)

(P6,233,493,745) (B5,125,604,503)

97
SHANG PROPERTIES | 2014




¢ The reconciliation of provision for income tax using the statutory income tax rate and the actual
provision for income tax for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

20114 2013 2012
Proweision for income tix at the
statutory income tax rate B1,234408,738 B3 16 358 897 PTI0O 472 332
Tax effects of:
Remeasurement gain as a result
of busingss combination 247,320,342 - -
Difference between ttemized
and optional standard
deductions (05D} {160,981,245) (148,121,393} (L01,627479)
Movements in unrecognized
deferred income tax assets 33,872.226 (48,713,148) Ta0,452
Share in losses (profits) of
associatos 2,870,807 1,402,224 (6,216,170)
Interest income subjected to
final tax (2,474,580} (4,445 |B6) (5, 329.656)
Other non-taxable imcome,
net of non-deductible
Gxpenses (359,523,549) 34,948,330 (80,856,988)
Provigion for income tax PY9s 501,739 BT51429.724 B536,192511

d. The Group did not recognize deferred income tax asscts on the following items as of December
31, 2014 and 2013 since management believes that the Group may not have sufficient future
taxable profits available to allow afl or part of them to be utilized in the future ar prior to

expiration:
2014 2013
NOLCO B5G, 780,645 RIS OISETE
Others 6,644,866 3,991,596
g The Group's NOLCO which is available for deduction against future taxable income are as
follows:
Year Available
_Incurred Beginning Tneureed Expired Ending Until
2014 B 245,875419 B pde 875419 2007
2013 6,903 391 - - 6,905,391 2016
2012 2090 833 - - 2,999 835 2015
2011 6,010,632 - 6,010,632 - 2014
B15915878 B46 873410  B601D652 B56, 70,645

£ The Group’s MCIT which can be applisd against future income tax due are as follows:

Year Available
Incurred Beginning Incurred Expired Ending Until

2014 P B4.070,649 R B4 070,649 017

2013 806,631 - 506,031 2016

2012 120,165 & - 120,169 013

PO26,800 B (070,640 B P4,007 449
28
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. The following are the provision for (benefit from) deferred income taxes directly recognized in

eauity:
014 2013 2012
Change m fair value of AFS
financial assets P150,000 BOO 000 #333.000
Remeasurement gains {losses) on
defined benefit liability (3,752.927) 9,963,681 (10,953,258)

(B3,602927)  PI0053681  (P10,620,258)

b, RA No. 9304, effective on July 7, 2008, allows availment of OSD. Corporations, except for
nonresident foreion corporations, may elect to claim OSD in an amount not excceding 40% of
their gross income. In 2014 and 2013, K5A, SLPC and IPPI availed of the OSD for the
computation of their taxable income.

30. Earnings Per Share

| Basic and diluted earnings per share are the same since there are no dilutive potential commen
shares.

The computations of carmings per share for the years ended December 31 are as follows:

Based on MNet Income

2014 2013 20012

Mot income attributable to equity

holders of the Parent Company  B2,735,375946 B2011.272.64]1 B 646477037
Weighted average number

of putstanding shares 4,761,918,337 4761918337  4,761,91§337
Earnings per share B0.574 R0422 PO346

Based on Total Comprehensive Income

2014 2013 2012

Tatal camprehensive income

aliributable to equity holders

of the Parent Company B2726,986,671 R2 035287770 RLG2LIR0SES
Weighted average number

of putstanding shares (MNote 213 4,761,918,337 4,761,918,337 4,761,918337
Eamings per share R0.573 £0.427 £0.340

There are no instruments that could potentially dilute basic eamings per share in the future.
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21. Related Party Transactions and Balaneces

Enterprises and individuals that direetly, or indirectly through onc or more intermediancs, contral or
are controlled by or under common control with the Group, including holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, are related partics of the Group.  Assooiates and individuals
owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them
significant influence over the enterprise, key management personnel, ingluding directors and officers
of the Group and close members of the family of these individuals, and companies associated with
these individuals also constitutc related partics.  In considening cach possible melated party
relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

The follewing are the transactions with related partics:
Related Party Transactions and Balances which were Not Eliminated Dunne Conzolidation

The terms, conditions, balances and the wvolume of related party transactions which were not
eliminated during consolidation are as follows:

Transactiony with affilictes

v A portion of the Parent Company’s land 15 being leased by ESHEL where the EDSA Shangri-La
Manila Hotel {the Hotel) is located. The lease is for a peried of 25 vears commencing on
August 28, 1992 and renewable for another 23 vears at the option of ESHRL Rental revenue is
based on a fixed percentage of the Hotel's room, food and beverage, dry geods and other service
TEVEINE,

= SPMSI provides management services to TECCC, TSFEPCC, and TSGTCC for a miminuim
period of five vears starting January 7, 2009 April 1, 2010 and Januvary 7, 2007, respectively.
As consideration, SPMS] shall receive from TSGTCC, TECCC and TSFSPCC monthly
management fees of 400,000, B100,000 and R100.000, respectively, melusive of VAT, with an
escalation rate of 10% per annum. The parties agree mutually on the renewal of the agreements

*=  Reimbursement of expenses paid for by SLPC for ESHRI

v Condomimium dues charged by TSFEPCC and TECCC.

' SPSI operates and manages the parking facilities of ESHRI for fixed monthly concession fee
starting January 1, 20010, This fee is included in the “Others™ under “Other Income {Charges;”
{see Mate 23). .

r Sharing of expenses with affiliates.

The following are the amounts or volume of transactions during the years ended and the outstanding
receivables and payables as of December 31:

Arnunty oluns Cristandig Balance
2014 2013 0% 24 2013 Tenis Conditicns
Eentnl
ai-day; Unseonred,
E5HEL POSA34 T2 PTRITLANG  BELASGERd  #25802506 F24,106483) moninterest-bearing s impeisment
100
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